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This is the third year of our Integrated Annual Report (IAR).
Faithful to our culture oriented towards sustainability, the 2017 IAR has a graphic and strictly “paperless” new look. 
Our approach to continuous improvement lead us to draft a summary document containing interactive elements and 
hyperlinks, adding novelty to the IAR. 

With the intention to have the Reader identify more and more with the company’s everyday life, the survey submitted 
in 2017 to our stakeholders made it possible for us to draft a IAR more focused on strategic topics, impacting on GTS 
Group both internally and externally. Our stakeholders asked us to set out the vision, the risk management and the future 
possibilities of growth more clearly; we have not back out of such request, on the contrary, we can strongly assert that 
we have consolidated our transparency in GTS, making it one of our top values.  
The protection of future generations, environmental disasters over the last ten years require a closer thinking of the 
environment and of climate change. Following EU policies rewarding business green, already back in 2016 we adopted 
the UN 2030 Agenda. GTS thus declared its compliance with the 17 Sustainable Development Goals. We want to stress 
that, in our opinion, Company is synonymous with Community, where the interaction between the various experiences 
and peculiarities leads to a successful business good not only for the income statement but also for stakeholders and for 
the community as a whole. We feel part of this mechanism and we try to best interpret its meaning. 

We keep on walking along the path of growth and consolidation of GTS services in Europe. The goals set out in the White 
Book, defined by the European Union, the oscillations in the price of oil, the numerous uncertainties connected with road 
transport play a key role in the consolidation of the strategic positioning of the Group within the reference market. At 
national level, where the Group’s leadership remains strong, also driven by the favourable data concerning the export of 
Made in Italy, we started a service dedicated to sea and air freight shipment, which allow us to enhance even more the 
offer of multimodal services for our clients. 
Railway transport remains the Group’s core business and this year, too, thanks to our creditworthiness, we started the 
most important investments campaign in our forty-year corporate history. GTS’s production capacity has increased 
thanks to the purchase of strategic assets, amounting to 30 million Euro. Looking back to an intense year, like the one 
that has just passed, one cannot but remember the path taken by the Group in the Italian Stock Exchange. Completing 
the Elite path confirmed the quality of our work, as a consequence of which our company is today equipped with all the 
requirements which make GTS a company oriented towards the future (management, financial statements certification, 
integrated report, management control, corporate governance, internationalisation, 231 system, quality certifications). 
The financial system, characterised by a high level of liquidity, partially favoured by the recent introduction of PIR, is in 
search for companies which may be interested in the opening up of the capital. 
As already mentioned, in order to grow, we need millionaire assets. The banking system has always been by our side during 
our growth path. To do the quantum leap, also by means of M&A procedures, we need to think in terms of extraordinary 
finance. As a consequence, the Stock Exchange seems the tool to pursue our objectives. Not the aim but a means. 

The analysis of the year that has just ended deserves a focus on the railway accident occurred on 11 August 2017 in a 
placed that, up to that moment, had remained unknown, Rastatt, a town located on the German Rhine axis. During the 
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construction of a road tunnel, the overlying railway line collapsed for some hundreds of metres and, only thanks to a 
miracle, there were no victims. Inevitably, all freight and passengers convoys were fully blocked for almost 2 months, and 
the whole Europe was totally cut into two. No convoys could travel along this line. The effect was devastating, without 
precedents, as the import/export activity to and from Italy was partially blocked, with significant effects over our GDP 
(some decimals). Our international trains were promptly rerouted, but the whole production was reduced by 80%. In order 
to avoid another Rastatt, all actors in the transports industry, starting from Governments interested in all international 
players, activated a number of remedial actions, among which back up plans. 

In spite of the accident, 2017 results were positive: the EBIDTA is about € 11.378 million with an EBIT of € 7.740 million. The 
turnover saw +2.2 % compared to the previous year. 101.7 million were the kg of CO2 saved in the environment, +36 the 
internal resources added to the staff. These results clash with those who, over these years, have told that doing business 
within the intermodal and railway industries was not possible. Honestly, we have never trusted them and results have 
proved us right. Last but not the least, the analysis of our railway company: GTS RAIL SpA. Located among the first 
five national companies, GTS RAIL SpA saw an increase in train/km equal to 466.000 compared to the previous year. 
With a touch of pride, we also want to highlight the most important circular economy carried out by GTS, which saw as 
protagonist our education centre in the railway industry, Rail Academy: employing almost all the students trained during 
2017 strengthens the basis onto which we are building the future’s railway transport, of which we are more and more the 
protagonists.   

All this, that I have tried to summarise in few lines would have not been possible if my family had not chosen to select 
and invest in the intelligence and strength of our collaborators who, with tenaciousness, astuteness and proactivity take 
everyday challenges, turning them into opportunities and value.

Alessio Michele Muciaccia
Chief Executive Officer
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Guide to Reading the 
Integrated Report

Also this year GTS Group has 
worked towards an integrated 
report model, which is in its third 
edition (first year of drafting 2015) 
and which, once again, shows 
novelties compared to the previous 
year’s version.
The 2017 Integrated Annual Report 
(hereinafter also referred to as 
IAR) was drafted by complying 
with the IR Framework principles 
concerning:

• Strategic focus and orientation 
towards the future – by providing 
information on company strategy 
and the ability to create value in 
the short, medium and long term;

• The degree of connection of 
information – by guaranteeing a 
high degree of connection and 
interdependency among the 
various information levels;

• The relationship with 
stakeholders – by clearly 
explaining how the Group does 
business with its stakeholders, 
engaging them in the reporting 
process;

• Materiality – by accounting for 
the aspects affecting the process 
of creation of company value;

• Reliability and 
comprehensiveness – by 
objectively reporting all material 
aspects;

• Consistency and comparability 
– by reporting consistent 
information on a space and time 
basis;

• Briefness – by delivering a 
concise but at the same time 
comprehensive report.

Over the last years, the Group 
has much invested on some of 
said principles. Just think of the 
relationship with stakeholders and 
of the materiality analysis: thanks to 
such elements, along with others, 
the Group won the prestigious 2016 
Balance Sheet Oscar reward by 
FERPI.
The comprehensiveness through 
which material topics are covered 
and the focus on strategy and 
orientation towards the future are 
issues that the Group intends to 
further improve in the future.
In order to improve the integrated 
report, in 2017 the GTS Group 
submitted to its stakeholders a 
feedback questionnaire regarding 
the 2016 IAR, asking them which 
aspects of the integrated report, 
in their opinion, deserve a better 
accounting.

The present report is different from 
the previous ones in the following 
ways:

• Briefness – the number of pages 
has significantly decreased, 
passing from 124 and 126 in 2015 
and 2016 respectively to a total 
number of 92 pages;

• Different positioning of contents 
– all the technical information 
addressed to expert readers, 
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who are used to reading and 
analysing the ESG information 
(Environmental, Social and 
Governance) is placed as an 
appendix to the report, so as to 
account for material information 
more effectively;

• Graphic layout – the distribution 
of contents on two columns make 
the document easier to read and 
the greater use of info-graphics 
adds clarity to information;

• Hyperlinks – informative sections 
are enriched with icons leading 
to specific contents placed 
somewhere else in the report or 
in other sources of information;

• Sustainable development goals 
– in compliance with the 2030 
Agenda, the Group has chosen to 
make explicit reference to specific 
sustainable development goals 
within the various information 
sections;

• Reporting standard – the GTS 
Group has adopted the new “GRI 
Standard” guidelines by the Global 
Standard Initiative, which shall be 
compulsorily applied starting from 
the 2018 financial year.

With the aim to give an accurate 
representation of the business 
management and of the impacts of 
the GTS Group’s activity, the IAR 
has been drafted by focusing the 
information on non-financial topics 
considered as worth of attention 
for the purposes of the materiality 
analysis (in the Appendix).

The 2017 IAR is organized into three 
macro sections.
In the first section, “The 
Group’s Identity”, the main 
traits characterizing the Group’s 
responsible management are set 
out, in terms of history, mission, 
company values and integrated 
thinking.
The second section, named 
“Our value strategy” includes a 
description of how the GTS Group 
intends to give its contribution 
to sustainable development 
through its business model, 
risk management, governance 
and its incessant dialogue with 
stakeholders.
The third section centres on 
significant topics, namely 
the specific contents making 
up the six capitals, based on 
the IR Framework. For a fuller 
understanding, see the “bridging 
table: material topics – GRI Content 
Index – IR Capitals”.
As a matter of fact, the Appendix 
includes the final paragraphs 
dealing with methodological 
aspects, namely, among others, the 
criteria and principles underlying 
the preparation of the document, 
the materiality analysis and the 
chart of association with the GRI 
Standard.
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The origins of GTS Group date back to 1977, when Mr Nicola Muciaccia 
bravely faced the entrepreneurial challenge to set up “his own” transport 
business. Since from the beginning great attention has been paid to a large 
number of clients, striving to offer the best transport service possible, 
based on the combination road+rail.

A history 
of success

1992
The first national  
train departs.

2007
The first international 
train departs for 
Manchester.

2008
GTS Rail is established 
and the railway licence 
for the national network 
is obtained

2009
The first locomotives make 
their first appearance in 
GTS: Sasha, Freedom and 
Independence. The first trains 
internally produced by GTS 
Rail depart along with them.

2010
Vertical integration 
of GTS Rail production

1977
The first company of 
GTS Group was founded 
by President Nicola 
Muciaccia.
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2011
The safety certificate is 
extended to a wider territory. 
The Group services are 
extended to cover also 
dangerous goods. The safety 
certificate, issued by the 
Railway Safety National 
Agency, is obtained.

Participation in the 
International trade fair 
“Transport Logistic” in Munich.

The fleet of the railway 
company grows, to include 
Elettra and Zeus.

2013
Expansion and commercial 
set in UK and Netherlands: 
GTS UK Lts and G.T.S. 
Nederland BV are 
established.

2012
GTS RAIL gets 
to 6 locomotives 
with Zoe.

2014
The Italian Ministry 
of transport and 
infrastructures issues 
to GTS RAIL S.P.A. 
the railway national 
licence for passengers 
transport.

2015
Nicola and Alessandro 
complete the fleet of 
GTS-branded locomotives, 
which now counts 8 total 
available and circulating 
units.

Felix Award.

2017
A board of directors for  
GTS Holding is established 
and appointed.

“Elite” Certification.

2016
The Rolling Stock 
Maintenance Workshop 
is inaugurated and set in 
motion.

Balance sheet Oscar.
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GTS HOLDING 
MUCIACCIA FAMILY

COMPANY HAVING A SHAREHOLDING IN 
THE SUBSIDIARIES, WHOSE SHARES ARE 
HELD BY:

ANNAMARIA MIGLIO 55.81%
NICOLA MUCIACCIA 22.09%
ALESSIO MICHELE MUCIACCIA 22.09%

62%

52%

55%

100%

100%

1.  THE GROUP’S IDENTITY



11

RAIL
SERVICES SRL

GTS RAIL
SPA

GTS
GENERAL TRANSPORT 

SERVICE SPA

GTS LOGISTICS 
UK LTD

G.T.S. 
NEDERLAND BV

GTS
SERVIZI 

SRL

COMPANY OF THE GROUP 
LIAISING WITH CLIENTS 
AND SUPPLIERS, DEDICATED 
TO ORGANISING AND 
OPTIMISING INTERMODAL 
TRANSPORT.

COMMERCIAL COMPANY ESTABLISHED 
IN 2013 TO CONTROL THE BRITISH 
MARKET

COMMERCIAL COMPANY ESTABLISHED 
IN 2013 TO CONTROL THE DUTCH 
MARKET

GROUP’S RAILWAY COMPANY.  
IT HAS BEEN PROVIDING RAILWAY 
TRACTION SERVICES SINCE 2009.

ROLLING STOCK  
MAINTENANCE COMPANY

CENTRALISED ADMINISTRATION 
AND ACCOUNTING COMPANY  
OF THE GROUP

COMPANY ACTIVE IN THE  
REAL ESTATE INDUSTRY 

65%

65%

MUCIACCIA
COSTRUZIONI

GRUPPO GTS SRL



The idea of value 
according to GTS
By adopting the Group’s Code 
of Ethics, GTS has the purpose 
of defining and disclosing to 
its addressees the values and 
principles of conduct they need 
to comply with in carrying out 
all the corporate activities and in 
maintaining relationships with all 
stakeholders. 

Creating shared value for the 
improvement of the environmental, 
social and economic conditions 
of the communities in which GTS 
operates helps strengthening the 
quality and reliability of service, just 
like the tough and parallel rails onto 
which the Group’s business model 
may travel.
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The highly complex 
context in which  
we operate
Within a rather complex 
macroeconomic scenario, logistics 
and freight transport represent a 
strategic lever for a sustainable 
development of the socio-economic 
system. There is no efficient 
economy without a suitable 
transport system.
The attractiveness of an industry, 
expressed as profitability, is strictly 
connected with competitive 
forces and with the ability to face 
competitors. The competitive 
structure represents the framework 

within which the company must 
succeed in reaching its sustainable 
development and profitability 
targets. The competitive 
environment within which GTS 
operates is affected by the five 
competitive forces which affect 
the profitability of the specific 
reference industry through their 
actions and behaviours.

13

INTENSITY OF 
COMPETITION: 

• High growth rate  
of the industry

• High concentration  
of operator

 

ALTA

CONTRACTUAL 
POWER OF 
SUPPLIERS: 

• Fluctuations in the oil price 

HIGH

CONTRACTUAL
POWER OF
CLIENTS: 

• Taylor-made services 

HIGH

THREAT OF 
COMPETITIVE 
SERVICES: 

• High competition from 
methods of transport other 
than intermodal 

HIGH

BARRIERS 
TO ENTRY: 

• Difficult access to the 
industry due to high required 
standards 

• Huge investments
• Learning curve 

LOW
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Freight transport is an essential 
part of the European Union 
domestic market, not only because 
it significantly contributes to 
the competitiveness of industry 
and services, but also because it 
substantially impacts on economic 
growth and on the creation of new 
jobs. In the last years the volume of 
domestic freight transport within 
the EU (road, rail and waterways 
transport) has been about 2,336.08 
billion tons-km per year, of which 
road transport is equal to about 
75% of the total amount.
The constant action of the European 
Union over member states, to 
reduce the fragmentation of the 
European railway market, is aimed 
at creating an efficient railway 
network which may offer a quality, 
reliable and environmentally 
low-impacting service. The use of 
traditional methods of transport 
keeps on generating a negative 
effect on the environment and on 
the citizens’ quality of life: transport 
is the cause of nearly one third of 

the energy consumption and of 
CO2 emissions within the EU.
Promoting efficient and sustainable 
methods of transport, such as 
railway transport, would make 
Europe less dependent on oil 
importing and would reduce 
pollution. According to the 
European Environment agency, 
CO2 emissions caused by railway 
transport are 3.5 times lower than 
the ones caused by road transport. 
Moreover, more sustainable 
methods of transport contribute to 
reduce not only costs associated 
with road congestion (expected 
to decrease by 50% by 2050), but 
also the number of victims caused 
by transport. Over the last 25 years, 
the promotion of more efficient and 
sustainable methods of transport, 
especially railway freight transport, 
has played a key role in the EU 
policy. Back in 1992 the European 
Commission established as one of 
its key goals a rebalancing of the 
various methods of transport. In 
2001 the European Commission 

IN EUROPE

CO2 EMISSIONS 
COMING FROM 
RAILWAY TRANSPORT 
ARE LOWER THAN 
THOSE CAUSED BY 
ROAD TRANSPORT.

-75%

-
Reduction of CO2 in the 
environment compared to full road 
transport

After a nearly ten-year period of 
decline and neglect, railway freight 
transport is now affected by a trend 
reversal. The analysis of the domestic 
market, in fact, highlights a growth 
trend of transported volumes. 
The traffic and turnover values are 
significantly higher than the previous 
financial year and such increase 
has positively affected all transport 
modes. The trend reversal of the last 
years, characterized by an on-going 
upgrade of the railway infrastructure, 
along with the allocation of economic 
incentives to railway companies (the 
so-called “ferrobonus”), made the 
current period start: a period which 
will lead, in the medium term, to the 
switch of medium-to-long distance 

transport from road to railway.
Such trend reversal has also been 
measured by the managing body of 
the Italian railway infrastructures: in a 
recent publication, whose source and 
data processing are in its possession, 
it calculated the traffic volumes trend 
for the 2012-2017 period in the first 
40 routes of the national network as 
corresponding to a CAGR (Compound 
Annual Growth Rate) of 4%. The range 
in relation to which the calculation has 
been made also includes the railway 
hubs where GTS Rail operates.
Over the last years significant 
modernization policies of the railway 
infrastructure have been undertaken, 
also with specific reference to the 
Tyrrhenian and Adriatic lines, daily 

traversed by GTS convoys. With an 
an investments portfolio of over € 
200 billion (about 66 have already 
been financed within the 2017-2021 
Planning Agreement), the Italian 
network’s development strategy 
includes investments aimed at 
achieving intermediate steps which 
may fulfil the freight TEN-T core full 
updating and upgrade target set by 
EU Regulation no. 1315/2013.
Special attention has been devoted 
to dangerous goods transport, which 
amounts to about 8.128 million 
tons*km by road and about 2.032 
million tons*km by rail (the rail having 
a 16% share).
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reiterated the importance of 
revitalising the railway industry, 
establishing that, by 2020, in 
Member states of central and 
eastern Europe the railway freight 
transport market share should be 
maintained at 35%.
For paths longer than 300 km, the 
Commission set the goal to move 
to rail transport 30 % of freight by 
2030. 50% by 2050.

Said objectives set by the EU, 
promoting the transfer of freight 
transport from the road to the 
railway infrastructure, have been 
converted into a series of legislative 
measures, issued by the EU, mainly 
aimed at liberalising the market, 
ensuring a non-discriminatory 
access to it and promoting 
interoperability and safety.

Road Rail
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CO2 Emission 
per ton-km in EU (2012)

In this respect, it is worth 
mentioning an important EU 
regulation setting new CO2 
reduction objectives for various 
sectors, including transport. By 
some EU finally adopted bills, it has 
been established that  deforestation 
shall be compensated by the 
planting of new trees.  
Said EU’s goals shall be turned 
into national objectives which shall 
be binding upon those sectors 
which are not currently included 
in the EU Emission Trading System 
(ETS), i.e. agriculture, transport, 
building and waste management, 
which all represent nearly 60% 

of the greenhouse gas emissions 
within the European Union. Such 
instructions will contribute to 
comply with the EU’s collective 
commitment of reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions by 40% 
in all sectors so as to take them 
back to 1990 levels, as provided 
for by the Paris Agreement on 
climate change. Based on the 
last data concerning emissions, it 
has now become of primary and 
urgent concern revising the allowed 
carbon budget connected with the 
emissions produced by nearly 4 
million cars.
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Integrated thinking 
and the integration  
of sustainability  
in the Group’s 
business model

The awareness of the environmental 
and social impact associated with 
the Group’s activities, along with 
the acknowledgement of the 
importance of both a cooperative 
approach with stakeholders 
and of the Group’s reputation, 
urged the top management 
to adopt a communicative 
approach guaranteeing maximum 
transparency in accounting for 
performances.
The Group’s firm intention of 
putting at the heart of its activities 
the creation of value to be shared 
by all stakeholders led to deem 
sustainability as the means to 
pursue its mission: handling cargo 
in Europe by fully respecting the 
environment.
The strategy adopted by the Group, 
aimed at merging the economic 
dimension with the social and 
environmental ones, has been 
based on the following activities:

• Ongoing and continuous 
dialogue with stakeholders – 
more opportunities for debate 
with various stakeholders 
(suppliers, clients, financial 
institutions, investors, 
collaborators),

• Benchmarking analysis and 
update concerning the 
sustainability good practice 
carried out by other players 
operating within the same 
industry, 

• Evolution from the drafting 
of a sustainability report to 
the drafting of an integrated 
report – GTS has chosen to 
invest in defining a structured 
process which passed, in the 
2015-2017 period, from an 
exclusively financial reporting 
to an integrated one, especially 
focusing on social and 
environmental aspects.

Anyway all this cannot be achieved 
without an integrated way of 
thinking, the expression of the 
complex organisational aptitude 
characterising the GTS Group, 
which is made of variedly-skilled 
people, who proactively approach 
big challenges and change issues. 
In order to maintain such approach, 
though, time and resources are 
needed.
The investment that GTS intends to 
constantly carry on making is the 
one on the people who, in different 

ways, cooperate in the value 
making process and who, sensitive 
to and aware of the ESG issues, may 
become the protagonists of a new 
way of doing business, by actively 
contributing to the achievement 
of the 2030 Agenda sustainability 
goals.

1.  THE GROUP’S IDENTITY
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2013

2015

2014

2016 2017

AIR 2017 is the result of a fusion between report and 
different information, expression of a combination of 
minds and different personalities which animate the 
organization of the group.

One of the 2017 IAR’s specific features is the connection 
of the various pieces of information, which means, for 
the GTS Group, the connection among:

• The various contents of the report – within the same 
report reference is made to other sections better 
analysing certain aspects;

• Past, present and future – the performance indicators 
of different financial years are compared, which, 
however, only feature elements which can be 
compared with quality information;

• Financial and non-financial information – full 
combination of economic and financial data with 
environmental, social and qualitative governance 
information.

In this respect, the 2017 IAR is the merger of different reports and information, representing the combination of the 
different minds and personalities giving shape to the Group’s organisational structure.

ANNUAL REPORT

INTEGRATED
ANNUAL REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT +
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

INTEGRATED
ANNUAL REPORT

INTEGRATED
ANNUAL REPORT

VINCENZA 
LASSANDRO
Safety manager 
GTS Rail SpA

LEONARDO 
MONOPOLI
Sustainability manager

PASQUALE
TODISCO
Chief financial officer

ANTONIO 
VALENZANO
Chief operation officer 
GTS Rail SpA

CIRO 
ARMIGERO
Controller and Work 
Group Manager 
csr@gtslogistic.com

MIMMO
CAVALLO
Chief commercial officer

TERIANA 
CORALLO
Operations manager

GIUSEPPE
DESANTIS
General manager

https://www.gtslogistic.com/images/pdf/gts-annual-report-it.pdf
https://www.gtslogistic.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/gts-integrated-report-2015.pdf
https://www.gtslogistic.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/gts-integrated-report-2015.pdf
https://www.gtslogistic.com/images/pdf/annual-report-2014_it.pdf
https://www.gtslogistic.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/06/GTS-Integrated-Annual-Report-2017-Italiano.pdf
https://www.gtslogistic.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/06/GTS-Integrated-Annual-Report-2017-Italiano.pdf
https://www.linkedin.com/in/pasquale-todisco-966191b/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/pasquale-todisco-966191b/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/antonio-valenzano-25a91158/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/antonio-valenzano-25a91158/
https://it.linkedin.com/in/ciro-armigero-37710628
https://it.linkedin.com/in/ciro-armigero-37710628
https://it.linkedin.com/in/mimmo-cavallo-26b482b
https://it.linkedin.com/in/mimmo-cavallo-26b482b
https://www.linkedin.com/in/teriana-corallo-413a5820/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/teriana-corallo-413a5820/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/giuseppe-desantis-4277ba21/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/giuseppe-desantis-4277ba21/
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GTS Group’s 
contribution to 
the sustainable 
development goals 
set by the UN

In September 2015 the UN 
Member states undersigned the 
2030 Agenda for Sustainable 
Development: it is an action plan 
addressing people, the planet and 
prosperity including the 17 Goals 
(Sustainable Development Goals, 
SDGs) that acceding countries 
have undertaken to reach by 2030. 
Such goals require a necessary and 
urgent concerted action by all the 
Countries, with the aim to promote 
prosperity and to protect the 
planet.

THE ERADICATION OF POVERTY MUST BE 
ACCOMPANIED BY STRATEGIES WHICH 
MAY IMPROVE ECONOMIC GROWTH AND 
MEET A SERIES OF SOCIAL REQUIREMENTS, 
AMONG WHICH EDUCATION, HEALTH, SOCIAL 
PROTECTION AND THE OPPORTUNITIES FOR 
LIVELIHOOD AND EMPLOYMENT, BY TACKLING 
CLIMATE CHANGE AND PROTECTING THE 
ENVIRONMENT.
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GOAL AZIONE

GOOD HEALTH
Guaranteeing a healthy life, by promoting everybody’s 
wellbeing, especially to employees and, as a consequence, 
to their children

• Company fitness area
• It promotes the physical and psychological wellbeing of 

employees

QUALITY EDUCATION
Guaranteeing ongoing education as well as fair and quality 
learning opportunities

• The Group supports the attending of refresher courses
• It promotes school-employment integration projects
• It organises training courses for railway operators

GENDER EQUALITY
Promoting gender equality and other kinds of diversity (age, 
culture, education)

• The Group promotes the safeguard of gender policies
• It supports the integration of non-EU employees 

DECENT WORK AND ECONOMIC GROWTH
Encouraging a long-lasting and sustainable economic growth, 
employment development and a respectable work for 
everybody

• Training programme for the development of specific skills and 
knowledge, also on SDG issues.

INNOVATION AND INFRASTRUCTURE
Fostering innovation and a sustainable industrialisation level

• Purchase of new locomotives
• “Piano Impresa 4.0” investments

SUSTAINABLE CITIES AND COMMUNITIES
Contributing to making cities and human settlements 
inclusive, safe and sustainable 

• Company testimonies at specific events and workshops.
• Actively supporting social initiatives in the territory 

RESPONSIBLE CONSUMPTION
Guaranteeing sustainable consumption and production 
models

• Training on sustainable transport
• Informing employees about wastefulness reduction in the 

company spaces

CLIMATE ACTION
Adopting measures aimed at tackling climate change and its 
consequences

• Promoting CO2 saving forms also for client companies 
• Periodically reporting to clients about CO2 saving 

Being aware of the importance of each of said goals, the GTS Group thinks that 
they can concretely contribute to at least 8 of said goals:

In these years GTS has been undertaking to account 
for developed actions and achieved results in full 
transparency, contributing to the scientific debate on 
sustainable development. The indicators developed by 
the Group offer a view of the current commitment.

As a matter of fact, the 2017 IAR contains many 
references to sustainable development goals in the 
following sections:

• Letter from the CEO

• “Sustainable” management plan

• Capitals

• Materiality analysis 

• Bridging table: Material issues – Standard GRI 

Indicators – IR Capitals

• GRI Content Index
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The engagement  
of stakeholders
The debate among the stakeholders 
is an essential tool for GTS 
group, not only for the selection 
of the themes but also for the 
strategic management of relevant 
perspectives for the stakeholders.
GTS Group in order to integrate 
the requests of all the stakeholders, 
proposed again the same strategies 
of communication, by increasing 
the number of the recipients.
during this examination, have been 
confirmed some actions approved 
in the previous reports, such as:
the definition of listening moments, 
the undestranding of the demands, 
the release of feedback.
GTS continues its action involving 
local communities, suppliers, 
customers, shareholders asking 
their feedback about materiality, 
contents and reports. the aim is to 

connect all the different demands of 
the stakeholders: for this reason the 
stakeholders analysis is important.
who are the stakeholders for GTS? 
all people in contact with te group 
during the business activities.
the most important categories of 
stakeholders are:

• people who have financial 
relationship with the societies of 
the Group

• people who can influence or 
being influenced by GTS Group 
business

• people who interact with the 
Group directly: trade associations 
and mass media

STAKEHOLDER MAIN INITIATIVES

HUMAN RESOURCES Sector’s regular meetings with the CEO - House organ, monthly published by xx
Company intranet and regular mailing

CLIENTS Thematic regular meetings, inspections and technical checks, check audits, 
dedicated internet portal, regular update newsletter

SUPPLIERS Regular meetings

REGULATORY BODIES Regular checks and inspections

REPRESENTATIVE 
ASSOCIATIONS Regular meetings

EDUCATION AND TRAINING 
INSTITUTES Business case study on various scientific publications and degree thesis
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HUMAN RESOURCES
This category includes all the GTS 
Group’s employees. The personal 
engagement is pivotal to rapidly 
attain a match between corporate 
objectives and personnel’s 
expectations.

CLIENTS
The GTS’s progressive growth must 
include the meeting of clients’ 
expectations. The continuous 
improvement of the service offered, 
achieved by adopting a strategy 
capable of promptly interpreting 
clients’ needs, has led over the last 
years to a significantly smoother 
collaboration. The strengthening 
of such non-financial information 
has been possible thanks to clients’ 
solicitation, more and more aware 
of the impacts deriving from opting 
for railway transport rather than the 
traditional road transport.

SUPPLIERS
The Group has always had a strong 
inclination towards establishing 
solid and lasting partnership 
relationships. Thanks to this, the 
Group is now part of a wider 
system involving a large number 
of subjects, many of which are 
suppliers. By adopting such 
approach, it has been possible for 
the Group to establish over time 
relationships through which looking 
at the future by focusing on long-
term investments.

REGULATORY BODIES
The GTS Group’s companies 
regularly undergo verification 
activities by competent companies 
and supervisory authorities. With 
specific reference to the railway 
traffic, the Agenzia Nazionale per 
la sicurezza delle Ferrovie1 (ANSF) 
provide the subsidiary company 
GTS Rail with specific instructions 
and provisions on the matter, 
ensuring that it maintains high 
safety standards. No criticalities 
emerged from the verification 
activities carried out in 2017.

TRADE ASSOCIATIONS
The GTS Group constantly maintains 
relationships and actively takes part 
in the formal dialogue with its own 
representatives, directly committing 
itself in raising awareness as to CSR 
at regional and national level.

TRAINING AND 
EDUCATION 
INSTITUTES
The various written agreements 
with Italian Universities, the 
learning-working programs, the 
partnerships with technical high 
schools prove the commitment and 
attention towards the research and 
education world.

1 The English for ANSF is “National Railway Safety Agency”
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Internal survey  
on the level  
of satisfaction  
with the 2016 IAR

The stakeholders unequivocally expressed the need to specifically improve the following sections: “future 
perspectives”, “risks and opportunities”, “strategy and allocation of resources”.
As a matter of fact, compared to the 2016 IAR, the 2017 IAR appears improved as to the disclosure of risks and as to 
the sustainability and strategy policy.

> PRESENTATION OF THE GROUP AND 
 OF THE EXTERNAL CONTEXT
> GOVERNANCE
> BUSINESS MODEL
> RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES
> STRATEGY AND ALLOCATION OF RESOURCES

> PERFORMANCE/CAPITALS
> FUTURE PERSPECTIVES
> GENERAL INDICATIONS ON THE 
 REPORT/METHODOLOGY
• OTHER

Below is the list of the specific aspects included in the survey

With the aim to verify and have 
corporate goals and strategy comply 
with stakeholders’ requirements 
and expectations, a materiality 
matrix has been created, in order to 
identify and prioritise the main topics 
key to lead GTS Group’s actions. 
The definition of material topics is 
based on the materiality analysis of 
2016. A representative sample of 
stakeholders has been selected. With 
a significant redemption percentage, 

a questionnaire was submitted during 
the stakeholders meeting at GTS 
Group headquarters, while other 
engaged subjects received it by email. 
The materiality matrix, included in the 
Appendix, defined the positioning of 
material topics, divided into areas, 
by crossing the various levels of 
importance attached to them with the 
type of stakeholder and the corporate 
organisational structure.

In carrying out all the ordinary 
activities to select material issues, the 
Group’s management asked its own 
stakeholders to express their opinion 
on the clarity and structure of the 
integrated report concerning the 2016 
financial year. The results of such survey 
(set out in the Appendix) have been 
useful to better organise the 2017 IAR 
content.

PERCENTAGE OF RECEIVED FEEDBACK

32%

COLLABORATORS

27,1%

SUPPLIERS

38,5%

CLIENTS

2,4%

BANKS
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The “sustainable” 
management plan
According to GTS, the management 
of sustainability consists in fully 
integrating the economic dimension 
with the social and environmental 
one.  Within such strategic 
orientation towards CSR, the need 
to draft the charter of sustainability 
commitments, including the 
objectives and the specific actions 

to be carried out in order to achieve 
such goals, has arisen. 
Such document sets out the 
strategy adopted by the Group in 
dealing with sustainability, stating 
the objectives and the related 
actions to be carried out in order 
to meet such objectives and the 
expected effects. Each goal is put 

in relation with the Sustainable 
Development objective set by 2030 
Agenda.
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OBJECTIVE ACTIONS SCOPE

PA
RT

N
ER

SH
IP

 F
O

R
 T

H
E 

G
O

A
LS

 

STRENGTHENING THE INCLUSION 
OF SUSTAINABILITY PRINCIPLES 
WITHIN THE CORPORATE IDENTITY 
AND MANAGEMENT 

• Internal and external spreading of the 
environmental policy introduced in 2011

• Granting a specific mandate as to sustainability

GTS GROUP

QUALITY EDUCATION

• Establishment of a Code of Ethics
• Setting out standardised procedures, approved 

by the Board, to monitor risks and ethically 
conducting the business

HANDLING AND MONITORING RISKS

• Adopting an organisational model compliant with 
the provisions set forth by Legislative decree 
231/01

• Better defining process KPIs

STRENGTHENING THE 
EXTERNAL DISCLOSURE OF ESG 
(ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL, 
GOVERNANCE) INFORMATION 

• Better compliance with the GRI’s process and 
accounting standards.

• Section>Sustainability>in the corporate website

ESTABLISHING A GROUP 
MANAGEMENT AND COORDINATION 
ORGAN 

Establishment and appointment of the Board of 
Directors for GTS Holding Srò

D
EC

EN
T 

W
O

R
K

 A
N

D
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 G
RO

W
TH

IMPROVING THE LEVELS OF SAFETY 
AT WORKPLACES

• Implementazione di un sistema di gestione della 
sicurezza conforme ai requisiti della norma OHSAS 
18001.

• Maggiore standardizzazione delle procedure 
interne oggi già presenti

GTS GROUP
MONITORING OVER THE GROUP Nomina di un sustainability manager

APPROVING AND IMPLEMENTING 
SHARED POLICIES REGULATING 
QUALITY, ENVIRONMENT AND 
SAFETY AT WORKPLACES (NEW)

Approval of the integrated management system

FI
G

H
T 

A
G

A
IN

ST
C

LI
M

AT
E 

C
H

A
N

G
E IMPROVING ENVIRONMENT 

MANAGEMENT PROCEDURES

Implementing an environment management system 
compliant with the requirements set forth by the ISO 
14001 standard 

GTS RAIL

IN
N

O
VA

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 
IN

FR
A

ST
RU

C
TU

R
E

IMPROVING INFORMATION FLOWS 
TOWARDS CLIENTS

• Communication format approved during 
confirmation of saved CO2

• New structure dedicated to handling clients’ 
complaints 

GTS GROUP

GTS RAIL

IMPROVING THE PROCESS  
OF SELECTION OF SUPPLIERS

• Creation of a List of Suppliers whose requirements 
for admission must also include the possession of 
safety and environment certifications

GTS GROUP

CHARTER OF COMMITMENTS
2015>2017 PERIOD



27

IMPEGNI SCOPE

SQAS CERTIFICATIONS (SAFETY AND QUALITY ASSESSMENT SYSTEM)
It is a system to assess the environmental, safety, security and quality performances of 
logistics services providers to Chemical Companies. It is a system to monitor logistics 
services providers in an independent and harmonised way, so as to ensure a uniform 
assessment at all levels. The verification, in fact, is always carried out by independent, 
credited and qualified auditors.

GTS Group

HACCP ISO 22000 (FOOD SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM) voluntarily adopted by food supply 
chain operators, directly or indirectly involved in the food production process. Each 
operator of the production chain is responsible for applying the standard, which is not 
aimed at certifying the whole chain but at certifying each single expertise.

GDP, offering greater guarantees to clients concerning the good practice of distribution 
of medicines for human use (BDP/GDP), to take account recent progress in the stocking 
and distribution of medicines within the European Union, as well as of the new provisions 
introduced by the EU Directive. 

ACEP-CSC, ensuring the highest safety to all operators that, in an international context, 
carry out container transport and handling.

ACEP-CSC, ensuring the highest safety to all operators that, in an international context, 
carry out container transport and handling. GTS

WHISTLEBLOWING, consisting in the voluntary adoption of measures aimed at preventing 
and tackling corruption and illegality. In particular, the measure aims at protecting the 
employee who, during his/her work, points out illicit activities he/she may come to know.

GTS Group

OVERSEAS PROJECT, entailing the creation of a department offering clients a worldwide 
shipping service by sea. GTS

CHARTER OF COMMITMENTS
2018 > 2020 PERIOD
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The 
corporate 
business 
model
The creation of long-lasting value for all engaged 
categories of stakeholders cannot be attained without 
adopting a business model aiming for the achievement 
of shared growth and development of environmental, 
financial, social and safety goals.
In compliance with the provisions set forth by the IR 
Framework and by the Business Model Guidelines set 
forth by the Business reporting Italian Network, the GTS 
Group has redefined its business model accordingly, also 
in consideration of the sustainable development goals set 
by the 2030 Agenda.

The GTS Group’s business model is based on:

> FREIGHT TRANSPORT MAINLY CARRIED 
 OUT BY RAILWAY;

> ASSISTANCE TO RAILWAY TRANSPORT, 
 I.E. ROLLING STOCK MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES;

> SERVICE ADMINISTRATIVE 
 AND ACCOUNTING ACTIVITIES TO THE GROUP;

> REAL ESTATE SERVICES

The business and value creation model onto which the 
Group is based is the one set out in the IIRC framework, 
in which the six capitals, financial, infrastructural, human, 
intellectual, relational and natural represent unavoidable 
assets onto which and towards which the value creation 
model is based and oriented.

In compliance with the IIRC framework requirements, 
in the following table the value creation process is 
described, starting from the transformation of inputs 
through corporate activities up to the production of 
outputs and to the creation of specific impacts.

OPERATIONAL 
Locomotives
Rail wagons
PW containers
Properties

CAPITALS

HUMAN
Employees
Corporate bodies

FINANCIAL
Assets and liabilities
Equity

SOCIAL 
AND RELATIONAL

ENVIRONMENTAL
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CORPORATE
ACTIVITIES OUTPUT OUTCOME

• CONTINUOUS  
MAINTENANCE  
AND INVESTMENTS  
IN PROCESS  
INNOVATION

• REDUCTION OF 
OPERATIONAL RISKS

• PRODUCTION 
EFFICIENCY

• COMPETITIVE 
ADVANTAGE

• INCREASE IN EMPLOYMENT
• REDUCTION OF CO2 

EMISSIONS 
• MULTIPLIER EFFECT 

OF SPECIFIC SKILLS IN 
TERRITORIES

• LOCAL BUSINESS

• HEALTH AND SAFETY  
AT THE WORKPLACE

• CORPORATE 
WELFARE

• MOTIVATION
• REPUTATION
• TALENTS 

ATTRACTION

• IMPROVEMENT OF LIFE 
QUALITY

• INCREASE AND 
TRANSFERRING OF SKILLS

• INCREASE IN THE 
EMPLOYMENT OF 
COMMUNITIES

• BANK FINANCING
• MONITORING OF 

INVESTMENT IN CASH

• OPTIMISATION  
OF LEVERAGE

• CREDITWORTHINESS
• BUSINESS OPERATION

• LOCAL BUSINESS
• FINANCIAL SOLIDITY FOR 

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 
AND INVOLVED PARTNER 
COMPANIES

• ENGAGEMENT OF 
STAKEHOLDERS

• REPUTATION
• STRENGTHENING OF 

PARTNERSHIPS

• DEVELOPMENT OF LOCAL 
COMMUNITIES

• DECENT WORK AND 
ECONOMIC GROWTH

• SUSTAINABILITY  
OF TRANSPORT

• ENERGY EFFICIENCY

• PROTECTION OF THE 
ENVIRONMENT

• REDUCTION OF CO2 
EMISSIONS 
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Risk 
management 
andcompliance
THE CAPABILITY OF PROTECTING AND 
MAXIMISING THE TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE 
VALUE SOURCES CHARACTERISING THE 
CORPORATE BUSINESS MODEL IS NOW 
CONSIDERED AS A MUST FOR THE GTS GROUP. 
THE  GTS RISK MODEL BRIEFLY ANALYSES THE 
FOLLOWING MACRO-CATEGORIES OF RISKS 
AS WELL AS THE ACTIONS TAKEN IN ORDER TO 
REDUCE THEM.
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1.
EXTERNAL CONTEXT RISKS
The occurrence of such risks falls outside the company’s sphere of 
influence. This category includes the areas connected with macro-
economic trends, the evolution of demand, competitors’ strategies, 
technological innovations, the introduction of new regulations and with 
the risks related to the Country context (economic, safety, political and 
environmental risks).

OIL PRICE

The period of markets’ uncertainty, caused 
by the international conflicts which affected 
Middle East countries, has led to an increase in 
the estimates of oil price. Such scenario may 
positively affect intermodal transport, due to 
the increase in the cost of full road transport. 

BREXIT

After nearly two years of the referendum 
by which the exit of Great Britain from the 
European Union was established, future 
perspectives, but, above all, what all this will 
mean is not clear yet. The implementation of 
article 50 of the European Union Treaty, as never 
before in history, puts economic operators 
before a completely new scenario. The only 
certainty in this context is the date, March 
2019, by which the definitive interruption of 
relationships between the European Union 
and Great Britain should be started. Such 
situation could generate manifest problems for 
all companies operating in the English market, 
there may be currency oscillations and logistic 
connections may undergo severe restrictions 
and require specific authorizations.  

NEW COMPETITORS

Very high barriers at the entrance, characterised 
by stringent regulations and huge investments 
make the sector closed to new intermodal 
operators.

RISK
OPPORTUNITY
MONITORING

MONITORING

RISK
THREAT

RISK
OPPORTUNITY
MONITORING
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3.
OPERATIONAL RISKS
This category includes the risk of suffering losses due to inadequacy or 
malfunctioning of procedures, HR and internal procedures and systems, 
or due to events outside the GTS perimeter. Such category also includes 
the legal risk, namely the risk deriving from the infringement of laws or 
regulations, contractual liability or liability in tort or from other disputes.

IT

The GTS Group has an IT department 
responsible for the research and development 
of information integration solutions with clients 
and suppliers. It also constantly develops 
solutions that can optimize provided services as 
well as decision-making processes.

INFRASTRUCTURE 
MANAGER

The Rastatt accident occurred in 2017 raised 
attention over the railway infrastructure issue, 
over which GTS convoys travel in Italy and 
Europe.

2.
STRATEGY RISKS
Risks typical of the reference business, whose proper management is a 
source of competitive advantage or, on the contrary, may cause a failure 
to reach plan targets (three years or one year). This category includes the 
areas connected with service and process innovation, human resources, 
organizational processes, financial risks and risks connected with possible 
m&a operations.

CREDIT

The creditworthiness achieved by the Group’s 
companies makes it possible for GTS to find 
capitals in the market, necessary resources to 
finance growth.

HUMAN RESOURCES
The Group has invested in incubators necessary 
for the training of talents to be subsequently 
absorbed in the personnel

REPUTATIONAL

The risk of decline of the corporate image, due 
to a negative perception of the image among 
clients, counterparties, shareholders and/or 
supervisory authorities. Special attention is 
attached by GTS Group to such category of risk, 
considering the several awards and certification 
it has been obtaining in terms of best practice 
within the scope of responsible management 
and accounting of sustainability.

RISK
THREAT
MONITORING

RISK 
OPPORTUNITY
MONITORING

RISK
THREAT
MONITORING

RISK
THREAT
MONITORING

RISK
THREAT
MONITORING
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RISK
THREAT
MONITORING

RISK
THREAT
MONITORING

RISK
THREAT
MONITORING

RISK
THREAT
MONITORING

4.
SUSTAINABILITY RISKS  
This category includes all those risks falling under the following areas: 
social, corporate personnel, anti-corruption and human rights. GTS Group 
also pays special attention to the reputational risk connected with the 
numerous awards and more and more frequent attestations that the 
Group is obtaining for its best practice in responsible management and 
accounting for sustainability. The greater attention paid by the Board on 
matters connected with such type of risk has led to act in a preventive and 
effective way to safeguard GTS’s social and environmental value. For each 
significant aspect, GTS indicates, in its analysis of risks, the description, the 
modalities of management and monitoring and the objective performance 
indicators. 

FIGHT AGAINST 
CORRUPTION

Adoption of the management, organisation and 
control model pursuant to legislative decree 
231/01 of the behavioural code of ethics.
Job rotation in the positions more exposed to 
such risk.

CO2 EMISSIONS

Active policies to encourage intermodal 
transport of goods.
Territorial marketing with the aim to promote 
the use of public means of transport by 
employees to get to the workplace.

WELLBEING 
OF EMPLOYEES 
AND SAFETY AT 
WORKPLACES

Incorporation of a Sustainability Manager.
Adoption of a voluntary certification in 
accordance with the BS OHSAS 18001 standard, 
specifying the requirements for health and 
safety at work, so as to allow a company to 
control its risks and improve its performances.

PROTECTION OF THE 
ENVIRONMENT

Voluntary adoption of ISO 14001, the 
international rule applicable to any type of 
Organisation, specifying the requirements  
for an environmental management system.
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Legislative  
decree 254/16
With the aim to make non-financial information more transparent and 
readable, the EU Legislator (directive 2014/95/EU), and as a consequence 
the Italian legislator, has introduced the obligation for Public-interest 
entities having over 500 employees, and whose total assets exceed 20 
million Euro or having an amount of incomes higher than 40 million Euro, 
to disclose a series of specific information as of 31 December 2017. Below 
is the list of information to be accounted for, subdivided into each of the 
topics dealt with.

TOPICS AREAS INFORMATION

Environmental Corporate management and 
organizational model 

• Use of energy resources and of water resources
• Greenhouse gas emissions and emission of 

polluting substances in the atmosphere

Social
Policies adopted by the company, 
results achieved and non-financial 
performance indicators

Regular auditing activity by the board of statutory 
auditors, by the legal auditor and by the audit 
company

Personal

Main risks connected with corporate 
activities, products/services, supply 
chains and subcontracts, whether 
significant

Impact, in the medium term, on environment, 
health and safety associated with risk factors

Human rights

Social aspects concerning the management of 
employees, the actions to ensure gender equality, 
the implementation of international agreements 
and the methods of dialogue with social partners

Respect for human rights, the measures adopted 
to prevent breaches, the actions taken to prevent 
discriminatory behaviours or actions

Fight against 
active and passive 
corruption

Organisational and Management 
business model

Fight against active and passive corruption,  
with an indication of adopted measures

Being aware that such obligation 
will not affect SMEs in the near 
future, GTS adopted such discipline 
in the 2016 IAR in a responsible 
way, to the extent that it has 
considered adopting a voluntary 
compliance with Legislative decree 
254/16 for the 2017 financial 
year. After an internal assessment 
activity carried out by the Group’s 
management, it has been deemed 
as appropriate not to opt for the 

voluntary compliance with the 
decree, though complying with 
most of the provisions set forth.
The bridging table Material 
issues – GRI Standard Indicators 
– IR Capitals may, in this respect, 
identify the ideal tool to combine 
the provisions deriving from the 
materiality analysis in accordance 
with the GRI standard and the 
information requirements set forth 
by Legislative decree 254/16.
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Governance
The identification and 
implementation of a business model 
based on the creation of sustainable 
value in the long term is grounded 
on a corporate governance system 
aimed at contributing to value 
creation for all stakeholders. All 
the Group’s companies adopt 
a traditional management and 
control system: by assigning 
mandatory competences to the 
Shareholders’ Meeting, this allows 
for a confrontation between the 
management and shareholders with 

regard to some governance key 
issues, such as the appointment 
and withdrawal of directors, the 
appointment of the members of the 
board of auditors, the assignment 
of the mandate to a statutory 
auditor, establishing the related 
compensations. The approval of the 
financial statements, the allocation 
of profits, the resolutions concerning 
remuneration and incentives 
procedures and policies, provided 
for by the legislation currently in 
force, are also included. In line with 

the continuous improvement process 
undertaken by the Group, GTS has 
decided to voluntarily comply with 
the Borsa Italiana SpA self-discipline 
code approved by the Corporate 

Governance Committee in March 
2006, reviewed and updated in July 
2015. On September 20th 2017 the 
Shareholders’ Meeting approved the 
establishment and appointment of 
the board of directors of the Group’s 
holding company, GTS Holding Srl.

Beniamino Di Cagno
Fabio Caputo
Vito Montanaro

GOVERNING
BODY

BOARD OF STATUTORY 
AUDITORS

AUDITING 
COMPANY

Alessio Michele Muciaccia

OWNED BY Muciaccia Family
GOVERNING BODY Board of Directors
SOLE AUDITOR Fabio Caputo
SOLE AUDITOR Andrea Venturelli

Alessio Michele Muciaccia

Nicola Muciaccia Anna Lucia Muserra
Fabio Caputo
Michele Tetro
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A

Nicola Muciaccia

Alessio Michele Muciaccia

GTS HOLDING

RAIL
SERVICES SRL

GTS
GENERAL TRANSPORT  

SERVICE S.P.A

GTS RAIL SPA

MUCIACCIA
COSTRUZIONI

GRUPPO GTS SRL

GTS
SERVIZI SRL
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The financial
capital
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97,6
MLN DI €

26%

11,4
MLN DI €

8,8%

OPERATING 
MARGIN

ROE

EBIDTA

ROI

2017 HIGHLIGHTS
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THE VALUE OF PRODUCTION

The collapse of 150 metres of 
railway occurred in Germany along 
the Rhine-Alps corridor caused the 
interruption of trains circulation 
for 51 days. The drop of tracks on 
the line in both directions, caused 
by a human error, literally cut into 
two freight transport, separating 
Italy from the rest of Europe. As 
a matter of fact, as confirmed by 
figures, such corridor represents 
the main connection between 
Italy and northern Europe: just 
think that the percentage of 
intermodal transport exceeds 
50%. The interruption occurred 
last 12 August initially had a 
restrained impact on production 
and on supplied companies thanks 
to the fact that the holidays 
period coincided and to the 
fact that volumes produced and 
transported by companies are 
lower during holidays periods. 
German railway authorities had 
initially estimated that circulations 
would start again by 26 August, 
that is why a part of the railway 
traffic had been diverted to 
road transport. Works continued 
until 7 October, which threw 
the whole European railway and 
road transport system into panic. 
The Italian production system 
defencelessly assisted to the 

creation of a bottleneck between 
the south and the north of Europe, 
which seriously affected shipping 
and the related performances 
of manufacturing and transport 
companies. Aware of the objective 
impossibility to move the whole 
freight that had travelled by rail up 
to that moment onto roads, and 
since no technical real solutions 
which could stop such disaster 
were foreseen, the fears and 
worries about the scenarios and 
the economic consequences in the 
short term which production and 
logistics companies would have 
undergone were unfortunately 
confirmed during the following 
weeks. Connections between 
Italy and the countries of northern 
Europe were interrupted. Even 
the hypotheses to redirect 
trains on alternative routes were 
unsuccessful, if calculated from 
a cost-benefit point of view. The 
damages and losses caused were 
huge. The estimated total losses 
amount to over 2 billion Euro, of 
which over 50% to the detriment 
of freight transport railway 
companies. A 60% decrease in 
freight transport with significant 
spill-over effects on the Italian 
production system.

During the first 7 months of 2017 there was a 5% increase compared to the same period of the previous year. 
The increase in the turnover can be noticed even further if one considers that it was generated by a positive 
variation in intermodal freight as well as by the fact that the turnover was not concentrated on few specific clients. 
Unfortunately, the Rastatt accident annulled such positive trend, as highlighted in data below.

2015 2016 2017

Revenues from sales and services 79.304 84.657 86.497

Other revenues and proceeds 6.308 11.022 11.127

Total value of production 85.612 95.680 97.624

SALES  
REVENUE  
VS 2016

+2,2%
CAGR 2004 
> 2017

+11,8%
OPERATING 
RESULTS OF 2017 
VS 2016

+8,3%

Values expressed in euro thousands
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RECLASSIFIED INCOME STATEMENT

Below is a table of GTS Group’s revenues subdivided into geographical areas. The effects of the accident 
mentioned above can be identified in the drastic reduction of values concerning the EEC market, with the 
inevitable consequences onto the volumes generated on the national market. The revenues generated in the extra-
EEC market are in line with the Company’s expectations. 

In order to better read the Group’s economic, assets and financial determinants, below is a table of the reclassified 
financial position and of the reclassified income statement, necessary to have a due representation of the balance 
sheet indexes.

The reclassification of the revenue account aims to highlight some intermediate margins which have a different 
informative content respect to the general structure defined in the civil code.
This method allows to appreciate the result, especially in relation to ebitda compared to the operating margin in 
net contributions.

TYPE OF REVENUES 2015 2016 2017

Italy 37.213 45.604 45.362

EEC 38.538 35.361 21.930

Extra-EEC 4.344 4.323 19.204

RECLASSIFIED INCOME STATEMENT 2015 2016 2017

Value of production 80.097 85.288 88.086

Production costs (64.524) (66.771) (67.369)

Value added 15.573 18.517 20.717

Personnel costs (7.567) (8.458) (9.339)

EBITDA 8.006 10.059 11.378

Amortizations and Depreciations (3.319) (3.048) (3.640)

Operational income 4.687 7.011 7.740

Financial results (293) (338) (379)

Earnings (losses) before taxes 4.394 6.673 7.361

Income taxes (1.272) (1.895) (2.136)

Net income/loss 3.122 4.779 5.255

Values   expressed in thousands of euros

Values expressed in euro thousands
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LA SITUAZIONE PATRIMONIALE RICLASSIFICATA PER LIQUIDITÀ

DESCRIPTION 2015 2016 2017

Working capital 30.115 33.148 35.580

Cash 3.163 2.000 6.146

Cash and other 
liquid assets 3.163 2.000 6.146

Other liquid assets 26.952 31.149 32.434

Short-term receivables - - -

Short-term finance 
receivables 25.860 29.589 30.347

Short-term fixed 
receivables - - -

Accrued income  
and pre-paid expenses 1.007 1.424 1.866

Inventories 86 136 221

Fixed assets 38.633 49.694 51.527

Intangible assets 636 496 359

Tangible assets 36.421 47.733 50.083

Financial investments 375 388 378

Medium- and long-term 
finance receivables 1.201 1.076 708

Total assets 68.748 82.842 90.107

DESCRIPTION 2015 2016 2017

Liabilities 53.149 62.618 64.751

Current liabilities 27.191 30.013 34.565

Short-term debts and 
overdrafts 25.920 28.660 33.337

Accrued expenses and 
deferred income 1.271 1.353 1.228

Non-current liabilities 25.958 32.605 30.186

Medium and long-term debts 18.435 25.209 21.095

Other liabilities 3.296 3.136 4.069

Employees leaving 
entitlement 1.351 1.529 1.741

Medium and long-term 
portions of accrued expenses 
and deferred income

2.877 2.731 3.281

Equity 15.599 20.223 25.356

Share capital 891 891 891

Reserves 3.977 5.549 8.052

Net income (loss) 3.122 4.779 5.225

Consolidated reserves 1.756 1.756 1.756

Non-controlling interests 5.854 7.250 9.433

Liabilities and equity 68.748 82.842 90.107

THE TREND OF 
OPERATING RESULTS 
2013 > 2017

2013

2,1
MLN/€

2014

2,5
MLN/€

2015

3,1
MLN/€

2016

4,8
MLN/€

2017

5,2
MLN/€

This classification allows to elaborate all the patrimonial and financial dynamics and also the capital used for 
the financial activity of the company.

GTS Holding Group’s Consolidated Financial 
Statements, ended on 31 December 2017, on which 
the economical-financial data herein are based, are 
subject to voluntary auditing, which is carried out 
by PricewaterhouseCoopers. Based on auditors’ 
judgment, the financial statements provide a true and 
fair view of the patrimonial and financial position of 
the group, of the economic result and cash flows in 
relation to the Italian law which teaches the methods.  
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NET FINANCIAL POSITION 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INDICATORS

2015 2016 2017

Cash 3.163 2.000 6.146

Short-term financial debts (4.442) (6.209) (7.835)

Bank overdrafts and advances on invoices (510) (325) -

Short-term part of long-term debts (1.534) (2.484) (2.477)

Short-term debts for leasing (2.398) (3.399) 5.358

Short-term financial position (1.278) (4.209) (1.689)

Medium and long-term financial debts (18.434) (25.209) (21.095)

Loans from banks (4.727) (6.210) (6.652)

Long-term debts for leasing (13.707) (18.999) (14.443)

Net long-term financial position (18.434) (25.209) (21.095)

Total financial position (19.712) (29.418) (22.784)

2015 2016 2017

% Roe (return on equity) 25 31 26

% Roi (return on investment) 6,62 8,4 8,8

% Ros (return on sales) 5,7 8,2 9,4

% Growth rate of net equity 25 31 34

Growth rate of assets 11 16 8,8

Average days of collection 102 91 115

Average days of payment 85 87 114

A systems based on indicators has 
been developed to understand the 
corporate dynamics implemented 
after the technical-productive 
combination of the company has 
been activated. In this respect, 
the main economic, financial 
and assets indicators have been 
identified. The ROE highlights the 
degree of return the Group has as a 
consequence of all the company’s 
activities. The ROI makes it possible 
to focus on the overall profitability 

level of investments connected 
with the operational activity. By 
quantifying the ROS, it is possible 
to analyse the quality of sales with 
regards to economic advantage, 
strictly connected with the price 
policy adopted by the company. 
A joint analysis of the growth 
rate of the net financial position 
and of assets leads to useful 
thoughts concerning the process of 
qualitative and quantitative growth 
of organisational and operational 

aspects of the company. An overall 
examination of indicators indicated 
in the chart below makes it possible 
to evaluate the overall performance 
level, with regards to the economic, 
financial and assets point of view. 

2016

Values expressed in euro thousands
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144
DAYS OF TRAINING

100%
OF STUDENTS HAS FOUND A 
JOB IN RAILWAY COMPANIES

45
ATTENDEES

2017 HIGHLIGHTS
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RAILWAY TRAINING

In 2016 GTS Rail started a 
partnership with a primary 
training centre recognised by the 
Agenzia Nazionale per la Sicurezza 
delle Ferrovie (ANSF) in order 
to provide training courses for 
personnel wishing to carry out 
safety activities within the railway 
transport field. More specifically, 
said training activities are aimed 
at obtaining and maintaining 
qualifications to carry out the 
following safety activities: driving 
trains, testing vehicles, constructing 
trains, accompanying trains and 
maintaining vehicles.
Encouraging and increasing the 
development of railway training 
activities in the south of Italy, 
starting from the Apulia territory, 
where GTS RAIL represents one of 
the main private railway companies.
The partnership has also 
contributed to an increase in 

the company’s profitability, 
considerably reducing times and 
costs for training, which resulted 
in an optimisation of the services 
offered to clients.
In 2017 the first three training 
courses for learners with no railway 
working experiences were held at 
the GTS’s headquarter. Below is 
a table summarising the training 
courses provided:

AS A CONSEQUENCE OF PROVIDED 
TRAINING, ALL OF THE ATTENDEES 
HAVE BEEN EMPLOYED BY ITALIAN 
RAILWAY COMPANIES.

VEHICLES 
TESTING

Days of attendance

44
Attendees

6HARMONISED 
COMPLEMENTARY 
CERTIFICATE

Days of attendance

77
Attendees

19
TRAIN DRIVING 
LICENCE 

Days of attendance

23
Attendees

20
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INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

With a view to an unceasing 
improvement, but, above all, in 
the firm belief that only through 
an integration with clients 
and suppliers synergies and 
economies can arise, the GTS 
Group information systems have 
committed to developing and 
implementing EDI systems with 
clients and suppliers.

Electronic Data Interchange helps 
the connection and dialogue 
between two different information 
systems, while facilitating the 
exchange of the flows involved in 
a commercial relationships (orders, 
invoices, lists of trains, etc.). This 
interaction is possible thanks to 
the use of a shared computer 
language.

In 2017 the GTS GO mobile app 
was released. It is a dedicated 
software for mobile devices for 
road drivers who carry containers 
in the first and in the last mile 
of the order. In order to ensure 
maximum satisfaction to the client, 
a timely and accurate management 
of delivery and collection services 
entrusted to partner carriers is 
necessary. 

As well as providing transport 
documents in advance, allowing 
for the detection of any damages, 
accidents or loading and unloading 
non-compliances, the app also 
makes it possible to measure 
the service timeliness and the 
quality of the service provided by 
suppliers.
Based on the meetings had during 
the last years, GTS has recognised 
the strategic importance of 
providing real-time information 
about the shipment tracking. 

Gts Servizi has developed such 
information flows and in 2017 
issued the automatic messenger 
system (AMS): it gives the client 

the possibility to select the desired 
information set from a menu. By 
activating such option, the client 
will automatically receive an e-mail 
for every requested checkpoint.

partner area, a portal dedicated 
to single clients, which you can 
access by entering personal 
credentials and obtain information 
concerning completed orders, 
scheduled orders, invoicing, CO2 
saving. The page also features 
a digital chat with related 
operational employees.

The last issued service is the freight 
exchange: a virtual environment 
into which GTS launches its own 
offer of road traction. The platform, 
which only requires registration for 
profiling purposes, will contribute 
to eliminate intermediation 
services, maximise the profitability 
connected with transport and 
to optimise supplier’s loading 
capacity. 

All this will generate an increase in 
profitability on provided services.
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+38%
OF KM/TRAIN 
COMPARED TO 2016

+5,3%
NUMBER OF TRAINS
COMPARED TO 2016

2017 HIGHLIGHTS
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2015 2016 2017

KM TRAIN ITALY* 1.077 1.234 1.700

KM TRAIN EUROPE* 2.013 2.173 1.850

NUMBER OF TRAINS 3.119 3.547 3.735

LOCOMOTIVES

The plan of investments made by the Group companies has been aimed at 
increasing and maintaining the rolling stock active.

GTS Rail Spa is currently equipped with a fleet of 11 locomotives, which 
comprehensively travelled for 7.9 million km as of 31 December 2017 along 
the Italian railway network.

RAILWAY WAGONS CONTAINERS

The company has 340 railway 
wagons of which 130 are suitable 
for intermodal transport. In order to 
make use of the potential of Italian 
and foreign railway lines, the fleet 
consists of 3 types of wagons: 90’ 
and 60’ SGGMRSS and Multifret 
wagons.

The “Tasca” railway wagons 
complete the fleet, together with 
the P386-profile semi-trailers 
travelling along the Adriatic line.

The number of swap bodies 
purchased by GTS General Transport 
Service SpA now exceeds 2100 units. 
They are variedly composed, as they 
consist of curtain sides and container 
boxes, with different specificities, in 
order to meet the needs of all the 
clients in our portfolio. In addition, 
the containers are equipped with 
different openings (side, rear, top) 
in order to make the loading and 
unloading procedures of goods 
easier. During the first semester of 
2018, 2000 C45 swap bodies was 
purchased.

They are the latest generation of 
E483 electric locomotives that 
meet all the requirements of Italian 
laws and are equipped with the 
most advanced safety systems 
which can enable the train to stop 
in the event of anomalies.
During the first quarter of 2018, 
GTS Rail SpA ordered 5 new 
locomotives from Bombardier.
A strategic asset is represented by 

the new rail-road loco-tractor, in 
operation since 2017. 

The innovative construction 
philosophy has made it possible to 
ensure great agility when driving 
on tarmac and an unchanged 
traction ability on railway.

* values expressed in euro thousands
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ROLLING STOCK 
MAINTENANCE WORKSHOP

TOTAL ASSETS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2017

INVESTIMENTI PREVISTI 2018

Inaugurated in 2016, the workshop 
started its 1st and 2nd tier 
maintenance activities during 
2017. The structure covers an area 
of 17000 square metres, 1300 of 
which are roofed. The workshop 
is equipped with two 60-metre 
linear tracks, an independent 
deck and column wagon lift 
system and a structure equipped 
with mobile scaffolding and 
inspection pits which allows the 
entire vehicle to be seen. Such 
structural arrangement makes 
it possible to carry out several 
maintenance activities on wagons 
and locomotive simultaneously. 
Thanks to its ease of access, 
obtained with a 1-metre deep pit, 
operations are carried out on the 

running gear by fully complying 
with the operators’ ergonomics. 
The 4 15 tons lifting systems are 
very useful, as they are used to lift 
the containers of locomotives and 
of the wagons frames.

With a view to completing the 
internal logistics, the workshop 
has been equipped with an 
overhead crane having a lifting 
force of 16 tons, which facilitates 
operations in complete safety. 
Onto one of the tracks a SAFOP 
UGL 30/D under-floor wheel lathe 
has been installed, managed with 
a SIEMENS numerical control, 
with a production capacity of 40 
min/wheel set. Unlike traditional 
centre lathes, with the under-

floor wheel lathe it is possible to 
do a re-profiling of wheel sets 
without any dismantling and 
reassembling, which significantly 
reduces maintenance times. This 
strategic infrastructure is the 
only one existing in Italy and 
has an entirely private capital. 
A significant optimisation of 
the process is expected from 
its full implementation, in terms 
of a considerable reduction of 
maintenance times as well as in 
terms of an interesting source 
of revenues deriving from the 
services provided to third railway 
companies.

OMR

8,1* 

TOTAL

65* 

LOCOM-
OTIVES

35* 

* VALORI ESPRESSI IN EURO MILIONI 

* VALUES EXPRESSED IN MILLION EURO 

RAILWAY 
WAGONS

+210 
 

LOCOM-
OTIVES

+5 
 

RAILWAY 
WAGONS

13,2* 

INVESTMENTS 
PLANNED FOR 2018

34* 

CONTA-
INERS

9,1* 

CONTA-
INERS

+250 
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-50%
ACCIDENTS AT WORK

+6,4%
INCREASE IN THE NUMBER 

OF TRAINING DAYS

2017 HIGHLIGHTS
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HUMAN RESOURCES

Human resources are a key factor 
for the achievement of corporate 
objectives. That is the reason why 
GTS keeps on investing on the 
professionalism of its employees by 
means of organisational and training 
activities, with the aim to give value 
to individual skills and to enhance 
the growth of employees within the 
corporate structure.

The GTS Group process of 
growth has had, during the year 
being reported, its feedback in 
terms of increase in the number 
of employments. A barycentric 
role in human resources 
management policies is covered 
by a person belonging to a specific 
organisational structure.

2015 135
2016 148
2017 162

Below is GTS Group’s organisational structure

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CEO
SPECIAL 

ATTORNEY 
Pursuant to legislative

decree 81/08

GENERAL
MANAGEMENT

MANAGEMENT 
CONTROL

INFORMATION 
SYSTEM 

HUMAN
RESOURCES 

SAFETY AND QUALITY 
MANAGEMENT

ADMINISTRATION 
FINANCE AND 

CONTROL 
OPERATIONS MARKETING 

& SALES
RAILWAY
SERVICES
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The Group companies’ ability to retain 
talents is proved by the personnel 
seniority of service: 15% of the staff as 
of 31 December 2017 has been working 
with the Group for over 10 years; 32% 
has been working with one of the Group 
companies for over 5 years.

On the basis of the needs determined on the occasion of approval of the 
annual budget, GTS Group employed the following categories of employees:

1 
QUALITY INTEGRATED SYSTEM 
MANAGER 

1 
MAINTENANCE TECHNICIANS

1 
TRAINER

2 
DRIVERS

3 
GROUND OPERATORS

36 
TOTAL

9 
OFFICE
WORKERS

19 
TRAIN 
CONSTRUCTION 
AND DRIVING 
TECHNICIANS

2016 2017
23

EMPLOYMENTS: 5
RESIGNATIONS: 6

EMPLOYMENTS: 31
RESIGNATIONS: 17

24

125 138

AGE OF WORKERS 

Up to 25 

10

20

30

40

50

From 26 to 30 From 31 to 40 From 41 to 50 Over  51

14 14

48

30

221
4

7

10

4

+9,5%

THE AVERAGE AGE  
OF NEWLY-HIRED 
EMPLOYEES OF 2017

33 YEARS

THE AVERAGE AGE  
OF THE GTS STAFF 

38 YEARS
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The gender policies are safeguarded in GTS: 43% of office workers 
(including executives and managers) complies with the so-called “pink 
quotas”, as a matter of fact there has been a significant increase, 10%, 
compared to 2016.

As of the date of drafting of the present report, no complaints about 
discrimination based on sex, race or religion have been reported.

MEN WOMEN TOTAL

Railway operators 84 84

Office workers 20 20 47

Drivers 16 1 17

Labourers 9 9

Executives 4 5 9

Managers 3 3

TOTALE 136 26 162

2015 2016 2017

HR 135 152 167

HOURS OF ORDINARY WORK 276 229 248

% OF OVERTIME 4,6% 6,1% 5,8%

104 2337 3

TEMPORARY 
CONTRACTS

FIXED 
CONTRACTS
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The map shows the distribution 
of income produced by GTS 
employees on the whole Italian 
and European territory.

During 2017 GTS fitness centre hosted a postural gymnastics course: driven 
by the enthusiasm that has characterised the previous editions of cross fit 
and jujitsu, a course consisting of 200 hours, held by a skilled and qualified 
instructor, took place.

EDUCATION RATE MEN WOMEN TOTAL

Management 18% 36% 26%

62

6

6

6

5

3

3

3

2

2

1

1

1

1

1

1

1
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SAFETY AT THE WORKPLACE

Always strongly geared towards 
ensuring adequate security 
standards, GTS Group is constantly 
engaged in researching and 
adopting, through organisational 
and management measures, 
continuous alignments with 
recognised international standards. 

In 2015 GTS Rail Spa first and in 
2016 GTS General Transport Service 
SpA then received the OHSAS 
(Occupational health and safety 
management systems) 18001:2007 
certification. The number of 
accidents at the workplace in the 
2015-2018 period confirms the 

attention paid by the company to 
the identification, elimination or 
reduction of risks associated with 
the business activities.

Safety of rail transport is an absolute 
priority of GTS RAIL. The subsidiary 
dedicates maximum attention to 
these issues. The chief operating 
safety gauge is represented by the 
Security Management System (SGS), 
configured in accordance with 
Legislative decree no. 162 of August 
10th, 2007 and in compliance with 
national and international safety 
management standards (Safety 
Management System), in order 
to prevent and reduce the risks 
associated with rail exercise.
The main objective of the Security 
Management System is to eliminate 
or at least reduce the likelihood 
of dangerous events resulting in 
harm to people, the environment 
and property, while continuously 
improving the conditions and quality 
of work.
The Security Management System 
allows GTS RAIL SpA to demonstrate 
to all stakeholders its commitment 
to security in compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations: 
its validity is a key requirement for 

maintaining GTS RAIL SpA Safety 
Certificate. In particular, in 2016 
the National Railway Safety Agency 
issued to the railway company a 
renewal of the Safety Certificates 
(Safety Certificate Part A No. 
IT1120170012 and Safety Certificate 
Part B no. IT1220170028), without 
any safety requirement. The absence 
of prescriptions attests not only the 
full compliance of the Management 
System with the existing national 
and European legislation, but 
above all the commitment of all 
management to implement and 
disseminate the culture of security at 
all levels of the company. 
In 2017 GTS RAIL SpA was the object 
of an audit by ANSF, in order to verify 
the compliance and effectiveness 
of the Safety Management System. 
The management and operational 
processes implemented by the 
company were appreciated, with 
specific reference to the transport 
of dangerous goods. After the audit 
activities no lacks impeding the 
maintenance of the safety certificate 

have been detected.

Training and formation have 
always played a central role for 
the acquisition, development and 
maintenance       of skills. During 
2017 the Group provided 49 courses, 
for a total 330 days of training, 
within its training centre.

The training courses which have 
been provided were aimed at 
achieving the following objectives:

• acquisition of new professional 
skills for the obtainment of railway 
qualifications;

• acquisition of professional 
knowledge and/or skills to 
carry out specific activities/
tasks or to manage emergency 
situations (e.g. Waste transport 
training course; Dangerous goods 
transport training course; First aid 
courses; Fire-fighting staff training 
course, etc.);

• update of acquired professional 
skills.

2015 2016 2017

Accidents 2 2 1

Near miss - - 5
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In GTS the educational railway 
structure is composed by the 
following professional roles:

• Responsible for Training: he/she 
has the task of scheduling training 
activities and coordinating the 
activities of the teaching staff;

• Approved Instructors (Teaching 
Staff); professionalised personnel 
in accordance with ANSF 

(National Agency for Railway 
Safety) regulations, responsible 
for training and monitoring the 
performance of staff engaged in 
tasks related to railway safety;

• Dangerous goods transport 
consultant: possessors of a 
certificate of professional 
training issued by the Ministry of 
Infrastructure and Transport.

COURSE TYPE NO. OF 
COURSES

NO. OF 
DAYS

NO. OF 
TRAINING 
HOURS

Courses for acquisition  
of railway skills/qualifications 26 274 192

Vocational training courses 11 20 160

Professional update Courses 12 36 288

TOTAL 49 330 640

Increase compared to 2016 4% 6,4%

TOPICS HR NO. OF 
HOURS

TOTAL NO. 
OF HOURS

Mog and privacy 31 13 88

SGI 44 31 132

SSL 91 153 743

HR NO. OF 
HOURS

TOTAL 
HOURS

31 13 88

44 31 132

91 153 743

COMPULSORY TRAINING

Below is an account of courses, number of attendants and number of hours 
of training concerning safety and health at the workplace.
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THE DETERMINATION OF VALUE ADDED 
AND THE ANALYSIS OF DISTRIBUTION

REMUNERATION 
OF PERSONNEL 2017

2016

REMUNERATION 
OF THE COMPANY

REMUNERATION 
OF THE CREDIT 

CAPITAL

REMUNERATION 
OF THE PUBLIC 

ADMINISTRATION

REMUNERATION
OF RISK CAPITAL

This year GTS Group has chosen to 
include the distribution of valued 
added in the social and relational 
capital, deeming that it provides 
a reliable proxy of what the Group 
means for social value creation.
Value added allows to assess 
the wealth created by means 
of corporate processes and the 
subsequent stage of distribution 
of wealth among the various parts 
which actively contributed to such 
value production.
The estimate, obtained by 
contrasting external costs to the 
value of production only, is useful 
to analyse the distribution of the 
wealth generated by the technical, 
human and financial capital.

NOTE: for the calculation method you can consultate the National 
Association for Scientific Research on Social Financial report (2013) - GBS 
2013, Giuffrè

Values expressed in euro thousands

2015 2016 2017

Value of production 80.096 85.288 88.086

External operational costs (64.438) (66.813) (67.199)

Value added 15.658 18.475 20.887

Return on personnel (7.559) (8.458) (9.338)

Return on credit capital (523) (451) (572)

Return on public administration (1.272) (1.894) (2.316)

Return on risk capital 3.741 5.187 5.755

Company return (amortisations and 
provisions) (2.563) (2.485) (2.906)

45%

14%

14%

3%

4%

10%

10%

28% 27%

46%
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SUPPLIERS

The adoption of long-term 
partnerships favouring effective and 
sustainable supply chains keeps 
on rewarding a rigorous process 
of selection and accreditation of 
suppliers, which cannot disregard 
the following elements:

 ⟶ existence of legality, fairness 
and transparency requirements

 ⟶ respect for laws and regulations 
in the environmental and social 
field

 ⟶ compliance with quality 
standards that guarantee high 
security profiles

 ⟶ quality certifications related 
to health, safety of human 
resources and workplaces 

With the aim to ensure that products 
and services are compliant with 
requirements and specifications, GTS 
is equipped with appropriate policies 
and procedures regulating and 
authorising purchases in relation to 
the proxies granted to the company 
management. Regular inspections 
and meetings are organised at 
the main road traction suppliers’ 
headquarters, in order to verify 
their production capacity as well 
as their compliance with laws and 
regulations.

TRADE ASSOCIATIONS

Also during the year being 

accounted, GTS guaranteed 

active participation in trade and 

industry associations. Below is 

a list of the main associations 

in which GTS Group’s 

representatives participate.

ASSOCIATION ROLE REPRESENTATIVE

Confindustria Vice-President Alessio Michele Muciaccia

Cifi Member Antonio Valenzano

Fercargo Member Alessio Michele Muciaccia

Confindustria – Forum RSI Member Ciro Armigero

CUSTOMERS

Here is the geographical distribution 
of the number of customers served 
by GTS Group. Reference is made 
to the financial section for a 
geographical analysis of turnover.

49%

14%

10%

5%

3%

14%

3%
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EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTES

THE COMMUNITY

POLITECHNIC UNIVERSITY OF 
BARI, UNIVERSITY OF BARI, 
UNIVERSITY OF SALENTO 
(UNISALENTO)  

The renewal of the agreements 
entered into with such institutions 
in previous years made it possible 
for many students to spend a 
curriculum traineeship period at 
the administrative management 
department of the Group.

ISTITUTO TECNICO SUPERIORE DI 
LOGISTICA E TRASPORTI

GTS renewed its commitment in 
2017, too, with the Transport and 
Logistics High School in Taranto. 
In its second year, the partnership 
is aimed at enriching the training 
courses offered by the school by 
sharing study programs and by 

means of an active participation 
of the company management, 
in their quality of teachers. ITS’s 
commitment is aimed at developing 
the following skills:
• Planning, organising and 

monitoring intermodal services, 
the related operational and 
technological systems for goods 
and people freight;

• Operating within the logistics 
chain to manage means and 
resources, with the aim to ensure 
efficiency in the transport of good 
and passengers.

• Organising, controlling and 
managing information and/or 
documentary flows connected 
with the transport of goods and 
passengers. 

The goal in 2018 is to select and 
hire the first  Baccalaureates of this 
school. 

On the occasion of the most 
important sustainability event in 
Italy, the CSR and social innovation 
Salon organized in Bari on 29 March 
a round table at which GTS was 
invited.
Promoted by Legambiente Puglia, 
contracting association of the 
“GGAG – Go Green Apulia, GO!” 
project, winner within the Public 
Notice “Giovani per il sociale”, 
promoted by the Presidency of 
the Council of Ministers – Youth 
and Social Service Department, 
GTS accepted the invitation by 
the association with the aim to 
relaunch the economy for younger 
Apulian generations, by giving 
value to green virtuous experiences 
present on the regional territory, 
and to create a network made up 

of young entrepreneurs, innovative 
companies, schools, universities, 
training institutions, third sector 
bodies and Public Administration.
On 11 October, the company took 
part in the round table named “The 
Adriatic railway highway. The launch 
of sustainable railway services for 
P400 semi-trailers”, organised by 
the Bologna Interport.
GTS at the service of APS Bether 
Italy Association and of our 
colleague Daniele, to deliver food 
to poor families of the Province of 
Bari.

After the two-years 

course, 2 of the 6 

students who had spent 

an internship period 

in GTS have been 

offered an employment 

contract.  

http://www.itslogisticapuglia.it/logisticapuglia/
http://www.itslogisticapuglia.it/logisticapuglia/
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SOCIALIS OBSERVATORY 

PARTICIPATION IN TRADE FAIRS AND EVENTS

SASHA TROPHY

During 2017 the CEO gave an 
interview to Osservatorio Socialis, 
in which he set out the actions that 
the Group is undertaking in the field 
of sustainable development.

We hereunder report a comment 
made within Wikicsr, a magazine 
dedicated to Corporate Social 

Responsibility: “GTS is one of 
the few companies drafting an 
integrated financial statements 
report. This shows the company’s 
commitment in combining 
the need for reaching specific 
financial results with attention to 
sustainability and environmental 
issues”.

For the fourth time, GTS in May 
2017 participated in the Logistics 
and organised mobility international 
salon in Munich (Germany). The GTS 
introduced itself to the over fifty 
thousand visitors of the industry.
The Bari headquarter hosted 
numerous events organised by 
associations and by important 
international financial institutions.

In November, GTS participated in 
ECOMONDO, a fair about green and 
circular economy in the mediterrean 
area. this in an international event 
characterized by a format which 
joined all the sectors of the circular 
economy.

In the Apulia capital, for the fourth 
consecutive year, the amateur sport 
association “Pelagica Fishing Club”, 
in partnership with the underwater 
activities and leisure fishing Italian 
Federation, organised the eagerly-
awaited Bluefin tuna leisure fishing 
competition “OPEN TOURNAMENT 
FIPSAS 2017 – BLUEFIN TUNA RACE 
DRIFTING – IV SASHA TROPHY. 
The initiative, representing the 
most important sporting event of 
its kind in southern Italy, saw the 
participation of qualified crew 
from various regions all over Italy, 
where every year similar national 

and international competitions are 
held. It is a competition for Bluefin 
tuna fishing enthusiasts, the species 
having the highest coefficient of 
multiplication of the catch, when 
determining the final score. The 
prey is immediately released at 
sea, in full compliance with the 
marine environment and the strict 
regulations of leisure fishing. The 
jackpot has reached 20 thousand 
Euro.



66

The environmental 
capital
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3.  THE CAPITALS
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-1.041.559.972
TOTAL KG OF SAVED CO2 FROM 1977 TO 2017

EQUAL TO THE CUTTING DOWN OF OVER  

51 MILLION TREES

2017 HIGHLIGHTS
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EMISSIONS

In December 2015 at the Paris 
Conference on Climate (COP 21), 
195 countries adopted the first 
universal and legally-binding 
agreement on world climate.  
The agreement sets forth a global 
action plan, aimed at putting the 
world on track to avoid dangerous 
climate change, limiting global 
warming far below 2°.

GOAL:  
REDUCING EMISSIONS

During the Paris conference, 
the Countries presented some 
action plans for climate. With 
its resolutions, the Conference 
(COP) invited all parties to give 
notice to the secretariat of their 
Intended Nationally Determined 
Contributions (INDC) well in 
advance of the COP 21 (within 
the first quarter of 2015 for those 
parties ready to give such notice) 
so as to facilitate the clarity, 
transparency and comprehension of 
proposals. 

GLOBAL FREIGHT GREEN 
ACTION PLAN TO LIMIT FREIGHT 
TRANSPORT EMISSIONS

The global freight green action 
plan aims at fostering an 
environmentally-friendly freight 
transport within and among 
Countries in order to reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions and 
other highly dangerous pollutants. 
This entails the expansion 
and harmonisation of green 
freight transport plans and the 
improvement of consumption 
efficiency, while at the same time 
safeguarding health and enhancing 
innovation in the global freight 
transport supply chain. According 
to the Energy International World 
Energy Outlook of the International 
Agency, the transports industry 

contributes to CO2 global 
emissions by 22 % and to “black 
carbon” emissions by 19%, a strong 
driving force of climate change, 
which also has negative impacts on 
health. 

Supported by 50 governments 
together with civil society and 
companies, the action plan 
was announced at the Climate 
Summit in September 2014 by the 
Secretary-General of the United 
Nations. Now it is part of the Lima-
Paris Action Agenda (LPAA) and is 
coordinated by the Climate and 
clean air coalition (CCAC).

SPEED-INCREASING GREEN 
TRANSPORT PLANS AND 
INITIATIVES

Green freight transport plans 
may accelerate the adoption 
of advanced technologies and 
strategies which allow to save 
fuel, reduce costs for companies 
and lead to significant reductions 
of CO2, particulate pollutants and 
other pollutants reductions within 
the whole transport industry. 
Green transport plans, partnerships 
and collaboration initiatives have 
already been implemented as 
voluntary effort in some countries 
and regions under different 
forms, with the aim to foster 
improvements beyond the standard 
business conditions. 

The most successful plans 
offer significant commercial 
advantages, boosting investments 
in technologies for fuel saving and 
for the reduction of emissions and 
operational strategies. This results 
in significant cost saving and in 
positive environmental benefits.
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UIC INITIATIVE FOR LOW CARBON EMISSIONS RAILWAY TRANSPORT TO 
INCREASE ENERGY EFFICIENCY IN THE RAILWAY INDUSTRY.

The transports industry is 
responsible for about one fourth 
of global carbon emissions due 
to energy. Without imposing and 
supported policies, carbon dioxide 
emissions of this industry may 
double by 2050. An ambitious 
climate action taken by railways 
may play a key role in bending 
the emissions curve and put the 
world on track to reach full climate 
neutrality within the second half 
of the century. The railway sector 
has a key role to play in finding a 
solution to climate change. The 
sector is ready to act, however its 
full potential may be exploited only 
by working in close partnership 
with national governments, with 
the private sector, development 
banks and NGOs operating in the 
sustainable transports industry. 

The International Railway 
Association, IUC, will liaise on such 
proposal, in order to give impetus 
to adhering railway companies and 
to ensure they obtain the buy-in 
from transports authorities.

Therefore, the UIC (240 members 
all over the world) proposes a 
challenge within the transports 
industry setting ambitious but 
reachable goals to improve energy 
efficiency within the railway 
industry, reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions (GHG) and reach a more 
sustainable equilibrium among the 
various modes of transport. The low 
carbon emissions railway transport 
challenge set new ambitious 
objectives between 2030 and 2050 
compared to those set for 1990:
 
1. the first goal is reducing by 

50% final energy consumption 
and greenhouse gas emissions 

resulting from railway 
operations;

2. the second goal aims at 
moving transport activities to 
low carbon emission railway 
transport (transfer of mode). 
The goal is doubling the 
railway quota of passengers 
transport by 2050. 
 

The UIC is looking for partnerships 
in order to reach said goals. 
Partnerships with the private 
sector would support innovation 
and a greater energy efficiency, 
just like partnerships with national 
governments and international 
institutions would support the 
mode shift.

The low-carbon emissions railway 
transport challenge will reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions by 
means of: 

• technical development and 
improved management, which 
lead to a higher efficiency,

• decarbonisation of energy 
consumption,

• better use of existing railway 
resources (infrastructures and 
rolling stock),

• investment for the 
development of new railway 
networks,

• benchmarking and reporting 
to improve performances and 
better inform the transports 
policy.
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The activities carried out in the 
delicate sector of environment and 
safety at the workplace, pivotal 
in the sustainability vision of GTS, 
are addressed and coordinated 
within the quality-environment-
safety at the workplace integrated 
management system, thanks 
to which the ISO 9001:2008, 
ISO 14001:2004 and BS OHSAS 
18001:2007 have been obtained. 
The integrated systems covers 
100% of the GTS Rail SpA’s and GTS 
General Transport Service SpA’s 
activities.
Aware of the necessity to develop 
their business in compliance with 
the environmental sustainability 
principles set forth at international 
level, GTS has decided to integrate 
in its own company strategy 
a commitment towards the 
protection and safeguarding of the 
environment, which consists in: 

• contributing to fight the 
planet climate change and 
global warming by reducing 

CO2 emissions, to be obtained 
through actions aimed at 
efficiently using energy sources 
and reducing consumptions; 

• clearly explaining to the 
management that activities 
aimed at safeguarding the 
environment and protecting it 
against any form of pollution 
have top priority for the Group; 

• ensuring compliance with local, 
national and international laws 
and regulations, with specific 
reference to environmental 
safeguard issues; 

• developing skills and raising 
the workers’ awareness as to 
the necessity to preserve the 
environmental resources and 
natural ecosystems for the 
benefit of future generations; 

• promoting, with stakeholders, 
the sharing and compliance with 
best practice;

• orienting the Environmental 
Management System towards 
an ongoing improvement of 
performances and constantly 
monitoring their compliance with 
set goals, in order to settle any 
non-compliance.  

Such policy expresses the values 
at the basis of the corporate 
management system and 
constitutes a formal commitment 
that is to be shared and spread 
at all levels, so as to guide each 
worker’s everyday activities 
towards a unique shared goal.

2013

46,4

85,2

101,6101,3

81,1

2014 2015 2016 2017

100

mln kg  
of Co2

80

60

40

101.6 MILLION KG 
OF CO2 SAVED 
IN 2017
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ENERGY SAVING

WASTE HANDLING

ENVIRONMENTAL INVESTMENTS

Protecting the environment is synonymous with energy saving. The 
reported consumptions basically refer to the lighting in workplaces. 
The increase in consumptions is directly proportional to the increase of 
volumes to be used as offices and classrooms for training courses. The 
use of energy-saving technologies moderates an increase trend less than 
proportional to the prosecution of works.

The GTS Group companies transmit the environmental statement form, 
in accordance with law 70 of 1994 and subsequent amendments. Neither 
sanctions nor warnings from the competent authorities have been 
detected.

The GTS Group environmental policies impose the adoption of green 
infrastructures. To such an end, the Rolling Stock Maintenance Workshop 
has been equipped with a grid connected photovoltaic system, whose total 
power is 22.880 kW and which ensures an annual energy output of 32216.19 
kWh (equal to 1408.05 kWh/KW), deriving from the 104 units covering a 
surface of 170.77 sqm.

The cost of energy consumptions re-charged by the infrastructure manager 
increases proportionally to the increase of railway circulations compared to 
the previous financial year.

Fuel consumptions can be mainly attributed to the use of cranes to handle 
containers at the Bari Lamasinata railway terminal.

2015 2016 2017

kWh 254.739 261.308 296.490

2015 2016 2017

€/000 432 598 632
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Methodological
note

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

THE ACCOUNTING PERIMETER

The 2017 IAR was drafted in 
accordance with the international 
Framework principles, prepared 
by the International Integrated 
Reporting Council and drafted 
in accordance with the Global 
Reporting Initiative Guidelines (new 
version of GRI Standard), applying 
the “in accordance-core” option.
In the appendix is the “GRI Content 

Index”, with a detail of contents 
reported in compliance with the 
GRI Standards and the related 
omission of information.
The engagement of stakeholders 
was managed in line with the 
provisions set forth by the 
AccountAbility 1000 – Stakeholder 
Engagement Standard 2015.

The data and quality and quantity 
information contained in the IAR 
refer to the Group’s performance 
during the financial year ended 
on 31 December 2017. The 
accounting perimeter of non-
financial information extends not 
only to the data concerning the 
Holding company GTS Holding Srl, 
but also to the three subsidiaries, 
G.T.S. General Transport Service 
S.p.A., GTS Rail SpA, GTS Servizi 
Srl and GTS Rail Service Srl. 
Each of the companies falling 
under the accounting perimeter 
features information concerning 
environmental, social, human 
resources, respect for human 
rights and fight against corruption 
topics, useful to ensure a smooth 

understanding of the activities 
carried out by GTS Group, its trend, 
results and the impact generated 
by such activities.
The integrated report, in its third 
edition, includes a comparison, 
where possible, between the 2016 
and 2017 data. 
The table showing the generated 
economic value was calculated in 
accordance with the methodology 
set forth by the Gruppo di Studio 
per il Bilancio Sociale (GBS) 
standard and provides, in particular, 
the use of the Value Added 
determination table and of the 
Value Added destination table.
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ACCOUNTING PROCESS

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The 2017 IAR contents have been 
decided in accordance not only 
with the principles set forth by 
the IR Framework, but also with 
the ones provided for by the GRI 

Standard Guidelines, namely: 
engagement of stakeholders, 
sustainability, materiality, 
thoroughness, precision, clarity, 
reliability and timeliness

The preparation of the 2017 IAR was based on a structured accounting 
process entailing: 

1. the engagement of all corporate subjects who manage significant areas 
and the related non-financial data and information presented; 

2. their contribution was requested during the stage of data collection, 
analysis and consolidation. They were in charge of verifying and 
validating the information included in the report, in relation to their area 
of competence. The data contained in the IAR refer to measurable values. 
Any recourse to estimates has been indicated in the document; 

3. the approval of the 2017 IAR by the Board of Directors; 

4. the publication of the integrated report on the corporate website so as 
to make it available for all stakeholders.
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Materiality
analysis

INTERNAL ASCERTAINMENT

PRELIMINARY ACTIVITIES

The information accounted for within the various sections of the 2017 IAR 
are compliant with the results of the materiality analysis carried out during 
2017, pursuant to the provisions set forth by the GRI Standard and by the IR 
Framework.

The analysis carried out has allowed to identify the economic, social, 
environmental and governance topics having a significant impact 
on GTS Group’s activities, based on the importance attached by the 
Top management (internal importance) and by stakeholders (external 
importance).

The engagement of the top 
management and some company 
managers made it possible to 
determine the level of importance 
of the 17 topics potentially 

significant for GTS Group in line 
with what is provided for by the 
2017 Industrial Plan – or with 
the sustainable development 
management plan.

First of all GTS Group started from 
an initial ascertainment of the 
results of the materiality analysis 
included in the 2016 IAR and 
of the activities carried out by 
stakeholders during the course of 
2017.
Though not impacting for the 
Group from the implementation 
point of view, the new provisions 
introduced by Legislative decree 
254/16 have been analysed as they 
have been considered interesting 
for the purposes of accounting.
The identification of significant 

topics has been made also taking 
into consideration:
• a benchmark of companies 

operating at national and 
international level in the 
intermodal transport and national 
railway transport sectors and 
which prepare integrated and 
sustainability reports,

the Group’s Code of Ethics   

At the end of such stage, a list of 
17 potentially important topics, 
in relation to the Group business 
model, has been drafted.
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EXTERNAL ASCERTAINMENT

From the panel of stakeholders 
(clients, suppliers, employees, 
regulatory bodies, banks and 
trade associations) a sample of 
stakeholders has been selected. The 
redemption rate has been about 77 
%; against 262 Circulated positions, 
the Group obtained no. 202 
correct answers. In this activity it is 
specified that all of the employees 
working in the headquarters have 
been consulted.
The collection of data stage has 
been carried out immediately after 
the submission of a questionnaire, 
which was sent via e-mail in the 

November 2017 – March 2018 
period. Part of the answers given 
in the questionnaire has been 
collected during the “2017 GTS 
Stakeholders Meeting”, held at 
the Rolling Stock Maintenance 
Workshop on 15 December 
2017. For each topic the related 
sustainable development goals have 
been reported.
The stakeholders have been asked 
to express the level of importance 
of each of the 17 topics by giving a 
score going from 1 (least important) 
to 5 (most important).

FEEDBACKS

The 202 answers can be represented as follows:

55 
SUPPLIER

65 
EMPLOYEE

77 
CUSTOMER

3 
BANK
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The results of surveys have been 
analysed and processed into the 
materiality matrix below, which 
defines the positioning of material 
topics, by field, cross-checking 
the various levels of importance 
(compared with the 2016 financial 
year) attributed to the same topic 
by the various stakeholders and 
by the corporate organisational 
structure.
The material aspects identified 
within the analysis refer to the three 

subsidiaries GTS General Transport 
Service SpA, GTS Rail SpA and 
GTS Servizi Srl which fall under the 
perimeter of consolidation of the 
Group as of 31 December 2017. The 
analysed aspects obviously have an 
impact also out of the organisation 
within which the Group operates 
and on the identified categories of 
stakeholders, and are significant 
both for the intermodal and for the 
railway transport division.

2017 MATERIALITY MATRIX

IMPORTANCE FOR GTS HIGHLOW 
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The analysis allowed the identification of a set of topics considered as most 
important (top right box), onto which the 2017 IAR focuses. In particular, 
the following topics, considered of top importance for the Group and for its 
stakeholders, are identified:

1. ANTI-CORRUPTION
2. HEALTH AND SAFETY AT THE WORKPLACE
3. DIVERSITY AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES
4. EDUCATION
5. REPUTATION
6. WORK-LIFE BALANCE 

The bridging table “Material topics – Standard GRI Indicators – IR Capitals” in the 
appendix allows to better understand to which GRI Indicators and to which types 
of capitals the six selected topics refer. 

SELECTED TOPICS
IMPORTANCE 

IN 2017
IMPORTANCE 

IN 2016

Anti-corruption ↑ ↑
Health and safety at the 
workplace ↓ ↑
Environmental externalities ↑ ↑
Supply chain (compliance with 
environmental requirements) ↑ ↔
Internal mood ↑ ↔
Diversity and equal opportunities ↑ ↔
Training ↓ ↑
Reputation ↓ ↑
Work-life balance ↓ ↑
Research and Development ↑ ↔
Quality certifications ↑ ↓
Output and outcome indicators ↑ ↓
Sustainability of railway transport ↓ ↔
Remuneration and benefits ↓ ↓
Risk management ↑ ↓
Price ↑ ↓
Profit ↓ ↓
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2016 IAR
Feedback 
questionnaire

Below is the list of the requests for improvements, subdivided into areas:

PRESENTATION OF THE COMPANY AND EXTERNAL CONTEXT   20

BUSINESS MODEL  12

RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES  50

STRATEGY AND ALLOCATION OF RESOURCES  26

PERFORMANCE/CAPITALS  11

FUTURE PERSPECTIVES   70

GENERAL INDICATIONS ABOUT THE REPORT (METHODOLOGY)  11

PRESENTAZIONE DELL’ORGANIZZAZIONE  
E DELL’AMBIENTE ESTERNO  20

MODELLO DI BUSINESS 12

RISCHI ED OPPORTUNITÀ 50

STRATEGIA ED ALLOCAZIONE DELLE RISORSE 26

PERFORMANCE/CAPITALI 11

PROSPETTIVE FUTURE  70

INDICAZIONI GENERALI SUL REPORT (METODOLOGIA) 11
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MATERIAL 
TOPICS

MATERIAL AREA
GRI STANDARD

GRI 
STANDARD 
INDICATOR

MATERIALITY 
PERIMETER

CAPITALS SDGs

Interno Esterno

1.
Anti-corruption

205  
Anti-corruption

205-1
205-2
205-3

GTS Group

Suppliers
Customers -

2.
Health and safety 
at the workplace

403
Health and safety at 
the workplace

403-1
403-2
403-3
403-4

Suppliers
Customers Human

3.
Diversity and equal 
opportunities

405
Diversity and equal 
opportunities

405-1
405-2 - Human

4.
Education

404
Education and 
Training

404-1
404-2
404-3

Students Umano
intellettuale

5.
Reputation

Company profile
Ethics and 
uprightness

from 102-1
to 102-13
102-16
102-17

- -

6.
Work-life balance

401
Work

402
Work relationships

401-1
401-2
401-3

402-1

- Human

Bridging table 
- Material topics – 
Standard GRI Indicators
IR Capitals
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GRI 
content index

G
RI

 1
0

0 102
General 
disclosures

Organizational 
profile

102 -1 Name of the organization
102-2 Activities, brands, products, and services
102-3 Location of headquarters
102-4 Location of operations
102-5 Ownership and legal form
102-6 Markets served
102-7 Scale of the organization
102-8 Information on employees 
 and other workers
102-9 Supply chain
102-10 Significant changes to the organization 
 and its supply chain
102-11 Precautionary Principle or approach
102-12 External initiatives
102-13 Membership of associations

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

●
●

●
●
●

12
5
92
92
12/13
15/16/17
12/13
54

50
50

32
66
65

Strategy
102-14 Statement from senior decision-maker
102-15 Key impacts, risks, and opportunities

●

●

4/5
33/34/35

The table below guides the reader through the identification of information 
required by GRI G4 guidelines.

Indentifies a piece of information fully reported, data and information 
which totally meet the standards required;

Indentifies a piece of information that is not reported because it is 
not available or because it is not significant and not applicable in the 
specific case.

●

○

SERIES STANDARD TITLE GRI DISCLOSURE COM. PAGE
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SERIES STANDARD TITLE GRI DISCLOSURE COM. PAGE

G
RI

 1
0

0 102
General 
disclosures

Ethics and 
integrity

102-16 Values, principles, standards, 
 and norms of behavior
102-17 Mechanisms for advice 
 and concerns about ethics

●

○

14

Governance

102-18 Governance structure
102-19 Delegating authority
102-20 Executive-level responsibility for economic, 
 environmental and social topics
102-21 Consulting stakeholders on economic, 
 environmental and social topics
102-22 Composition of the highest governance 
 body and its committees
102-23 Chair of the highest governance body
102-24 Nominating and selecting 
 the highest governance body
102-25 Conflicts of interest
102-26 Role of highest governance body in setting 
 purpose, values, and strategy
102-27 Collective knowledge of highest 
 governance body
102-28  Evaluating the highest governance
 body’s performance
102-29  Identifying and managing economic, 
 environmental, and social impacts
102-30  Effectiveness of risk 
 management processes
102-31  Review of economic, environmental, 
 and social topics
102-32  Highest governance body’s role in 
 sustainability reporting
102-33  Communicating critical concerns
102-34  Nature and total number 
 of critical concerns
102-35  Remuneration policies
102-36  Process for determining remuneration
102-37  Stakeholders’ involvement in remuneration
102-38  Annual total compensation ratio
102-39  Percentage increase in annual total 
 compensation ratio

●
○
○

○

●

●
●

○
○

○
○
●

●
○
○

○

○

○
○

○
○
○
○
○

56

37

56

63/69

32
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SERIES STANDARD TITLE GRI DISCLOSURE COM. PAGE

G
RI

 1
0

0

102
General 
disclosures

Stakeholder 
engagement

102-40  List of stakeholder groups
102-41  Collective bargaining agreements
102-42  Identifying and selecting stakeholders
102-43  Approach to stakeholder engagement
102-44  Key topics and concerns raised

●
○
●
●
●

24

24
24
24

Reporting 
practice

102-45  Entities included in the consolidated 
 financial statements
102-46  Defining report content
 and topic Boundaries
102-47  List of material topics
102-48  Restatements of information
102-49  Changes in reporting
102-50  Reporting period
102-51  Date of most recent report
102-52  Reporting cycle
102-53  Contact point for questions regarding
 the report
102-54 Claims of reporting in accordance with 
 the GRI Standards
102-55 GRI content index
102-56  External assurance

●

○

○
○
○
○
●
○
●

○

○
○

12/13

19

19

103
Management 
approach

Reporting 
practice

103-1  Explanation of the material topic 
 and its Boundary
103-2 The management approach 
 and its components
103-3 Evaluation of the management approach

○

○

○
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STAND. TITLE GRI DISCLOSURE COM. PAGE

G
RI

 2
0

0
 - 

Ec
on

om
ic

201 
Economic 
performance

201-1 Direct economic value generated and distributed
201-2 Financial implications and other risks 
 and opportunities due to climate change
201-3 Defined benefit plan obligations and other 
 retirement plans
201-4  Financial assistance received from government

●
●

○

○

64
68/73

202 
Market Presence

202-1  Ratios of standard entry level wage by gender
 compared to local minimum wage
202-2 Proportion of senior management hired from
 the local community

○

● 59

203 
Indirect Economic
Impacts

203-1  Infrastructure investments and services supported
203-2  Significant indirect economic impacts 

○
○

204 
Procuremen
Practices

204-1  Proportion of spending on local suppliers ○

205 
Anti-corruption

205-1  Operations assessed for risks related to corruption
205-2  Communication and training about anti-corruption 
 policies and procedures
205-3  Incidenti di corruzione confermatie azioni adottate

○
○

○

206
Anti-competitive
Behavior

206-1  Legal actions for anti-competitive behavior, anti-trust 
 and monopoly practices

○

G
RI

 3
0

0
 - 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l

301
Materials

301-1  Materials used by weight or volume
301-2  Recycled input materials used
301-3  Reclaimed products and their packaging materials

○
○
○

302
Energy

302-1  Energy consumption within the organization
302-2  Energy consumption outside of the organization
302-3  Energy intensity
302-4  Reduction of energy consumption
302-5  Reductions in energy requirements of products and services

●
●
○
●
●

73
73

73
73

303
Water

303-1  Water withdrawal by source
303-2  Water sources significantly affected by withdrawal
 of water
303-3  Water recycled and reused

○
○

○

304
Biodiversity

304-1  Operational sites owned, leased, managed in, 
 or adjacent to, protected areas and areas of high 
 biodiversity value outside protected areas
304-2 Significant impacts of activities, products, 
 and services on biodiversity
304-3 Habitats protected or restored
304-4 IUCN Red List species and national conservation list 
 species with habitats in areas affected by operations

○

○

○
○
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STAND. TITLE GRI DISCLOSURE COM. PAGE

G
RI

 3
0

0
 - 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l

305 
Emissions

305-1 Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions
305-2 Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions
305-3 Other indirect (Scope 3) GHG emissions
305-4 GHG emissions intensity
305-5  Reduction of GHG emissions
305-6 Emissions of ozone-depleting substances (ODS)
305-7 Nitrogen oxides (NOX), sulfur oxides (SOX), 
 and other significant air emissions

●
●
●
●
●
●
●

69/73
69/73
69/73
69/73
69/73
69/73
69/73

306 
Effluents and Waste

306-1 Water discharge by quality and destination
306-2 Waste by type and disposal method
306-3 Significant spills
306-4  Transport of hazardous waste
306-5  Water bodies affected by water discharges
 and/or runoff

○
○
○
○
○

307 
Environmental
Compliance

307-1 Non-compliance with environmental laws
 and regulations

○

308
Supplier
Environmental
Assessment

308-1  New suppliers that were screened using
 environmental criteria
308-2 Negative environmental impacts in the supply
 chain and actions taken

○
○

G
RI

 4
0

0
 - 

So
ci

al

401
Employment

401-1 New employee hires and employee turnover
401-2 Benefits provided to full-time employees that are not 
 provided to temporary or part-time employees
401-3 Parental leave

●
●

○

57
59

402
Labor/Management 
Relations

402-1 Minimum notice periods regarding operational changes ○

403
Occupational Health
and Safety

403-1 Workers representation in formal joint management–
 worker health and safety committees
403-2 Types of injury and rates of injury, occupational
 diseases, lost days, and absenteeism, and number
 of work-related fatalities
403-3 Workers with high incidence or high risk of diseases 
 related to their occupation
403-4 Health and safety topics covered in formal
 agreements with trade unions

○

●

○

○

60

404
Training and
Education

404-1 Average hours of training per year per employee
404-2 Programs for upgrading employee skills 
 and transition assistance programs
404-3 Percentage of employees receiving regular
 performance and career development reviews

●
○

○

60

405
Diversity and Equal
Opportunity

405-1 Diversity of governance bodies and employees
405-2 Ratio of basic salary and remuneration of women to men

●
○

58

406
Non-discrimination

406-1 Incidents of discrimination and corrective actions taken ● 58
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G
RI

 4
0

0
 - 

So
ci

al

407
Freedom of 
Association and 
Collective Bargaining

407-1 Operations and suppliers in which the right to 
 freedom of association and collective bargaining 
 may be at risk

○

408
Child Labor

408-1 Operations and suppliers at significant risk for
 incidents of child labor

○

409
Forced or 
Compulsory Labor

409-1 Operations and suppliers at significant risk for 
 incidents of forced or compulsory labor

○

410
Security Practices

410-1 Security personnel trained in human rights policies
 or procedures

○

411
Rights of Indigenous 
Peoples

411-1  Incidents of violations involving rights
 of indigenous peoples

● 62/67

412
Human Rights
Assessmen

412-1 Operations that have been subject to human rights 
 reviews or impact assessments
412-2 Employee training on human rights policies 
 or procedures
412-3 Significant investment agreements and contracts 
 that include human rights clauses or that underwent 
 human rights screening

○

○

○

413
Local Communities

413-1 Operations with local community engagement,
 impact assessments, and development programs
413-2 Operations with significant actual and potential 
 negative impacts on local communities

●

●

62/67

62/67

414
Supplier Social
Assessment

414-1 New suppliers that were screened using social criteria
414-2 Negative social impacts in the supply chain 
 and actions taken

○
○

415
Public Policy

415-1 Political contributions ○

416
Customer Health
and Safety

416 -  Assessment of the health and safety impacts of 
 product and service categories

○

417
Marketing and
Labeling

417-  Non compliance cases respect to rules regarding the 
 results of products and services on safety and health 
417-1  Non compliance cases respect to rules regarding the 
results of products and services on safety and health
417-2 Incidents of non-compliance concerning product and 
 service information and labeling
417-3 Incidents of non-compliance concerning marketing 
 communications

○

○

○

○

 

418
Customer Privacy

418-1 Substantiated complaints concerning breaches
 of customer privacy and losses of customer data

● 66

419
Socio economic
Compliance

419-1 Non-compliance with laws and regulations
 in the social and economic area

● 66
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Relazione del revisore indipendente ai sensi dell’art. 14 del D.Lgs. 27 gennaio 
2010, n. 39 

Ai soci della GTS Holding S.r.l. 

Relazione sulla revisione contabile del bilancio consolidato  

Giudizio 

Ho svolto la revisione contabile del bilancio consolidato del Gruppo GTS (nel seguito anche il 
“Gruppo”), costituito dallo stato patrimoniale al 31 dicembre 2017, dal conto economico e dal 
rendiconto finanziario per l’esercizio chiuso a tale data e dalla nota integrativa. 
A mio giudizio, il bilancio consolidato fornisce una rappresentazione veritiera e corretta della 
situazione patrimoniale e finanziaria del Gruppo al 31 dicembre 2017, del risultato economico e 
dei flussi di cassa per l’esercizio chiuso a tale data in conformità alle norme italiane che ne 
disciplinano i criteri di redazione. 

Elementi alla base del giudizio 

Ho svolto la revisione contabile in conformità ai principi di revisione internazionali (ISA Italia). 
Le mie responsabilità ai sensi di tali principi sono ulteriormente descritte nel paragrafo 
“Responsabilità del revisore per la revisione contabile del bilancio consolidato” della presente 
relazione. Sono indipendente rispetto alla GTS Holding S.r.l. in conformità alle norme e ai principi 
in materia di etica e di indipendenza applicabili nell’ordinamento italiano alla revisione contabile 
del bilancio. Ritengo di aver acquisito elementi probativi sufficienti e appropriati su cui basare il 
mio giudizio. 

Responsabilità degli Amministratori e del Sindaco Unico per il bilancio consolidato  

Gli Amministratori sono responsabili per la redazione del bilancio consolidato che fornisca una 
rappresentazione veritiera e corretta in conformità alle norme italiane che ne disciplinano i criteri 
di redazione e, nei termini previsti dalla legge, per quella parte del controllo interno dagli stessi 
ritenuta necessaria per consentire la redazione di un bilancio che non contenga errori significativi 
dovuti a frodi o a comportamenti o eventi non intenzionali. 

Gli Amministratori sono responsabili per la valutazione della capacità del Gruppo di continuare a 
operare come un’entità in funzionamento e, nella redazione del bilancio consolidato, per 
l’appropriatezza dell’utilizzo del presupposto della continuità aziendale, nonché per una adeguata 
informativa in materia. Gli Amministratori utilizzano il presupposto della continuità aziendale 
nella redazione del bilancio consolidato a meno che abbiano valutato che sussistono le condizioni 
per la liquidazione della capogruppo GTS Holding S.r.l. o per l’interruzione dell’attività o non 
abbiano alternative realistiche a tali scelte. 
Il Sindaco unico ha la responsabilità della vigilanza, nei termini previsti dalla legge, sul processo 
di predisposizione dell’informativa finanziaria del Gruppo. 
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Independent auditor’s report pursuant to article 14 of Legislative Decree n. 39
To the shareholders of GTS HOLDING S.r.l.
Report on the consolidated financial statements
Opinion
I have audited the consolidated financial statements of GTS HOLDING Group (the “Group”), 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017, the statement of com-
prehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In my opinion the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial posi-
tion of the Group as at December 31, 2017 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by 
the European Union.
Basis of opinion 
I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia). My re-
sponsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the au-
dit of the consolidated financial statements section of this report. I’m independent of the company in 
accordance with ethical requirements and standards applicable in Italy that are relevant to the audit 
of financial statements. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union 
and, within the limits of the law, for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements



90

Prof.	Dott.	Andrea	Venturelli	
Associato	di	Economia	Aziendale	nell’Università	del	Salento	

Revisore	legale	dei	conti	
Dottore	commercialista	

Studio:	Corso	Cavour,	51	–	70121	BARI	–	Tel.	080.524.35.12	–	Fax	080.5214809	
C.F.	VNT	NDR	76S16	A662V	–	P.IVA	06107140722	–	email:	and.venturelli@gmail.com	

 

Relazione del revisore indipendente ai sensi dell’art. 14 del D.Lgs. 27 gennaio 
2010, n. 39 

Ai soci della GTS Holding S.r.l. 

Relazione sulla revisione contabile del bilancio consolidato  

Giudizio 

Ho svolto la revisione contabile del bilancio consolidato del Gruppo GTS (nel seguito anche il 
“Gruppo”), costituito dallo stato patrimoniale al 31 dicembre 2017, dal conto economico e dal 
rendiconto finanziario per l’esercizio chiuso a tale data e dalla nota integrativa. 
A mio giudizio, il bilancio consolidato fornisce una rappresentazione veritiera e corretta della 
situazione patrimoniale e finanziaria del Gruppo al 31 dicembre 2017, del risultato economico e 
dei flussi di cassa per l’esercizio chiuso a tale data in conformità alle norme italiane che ne 
disciplinano i criteri di redazione. 

Elementi alla base del giudizio 

Ho svolto la revisione contabile in conformità ai principi di revisione internazionali (ISA Italia). 
Le mie responsabilità ai sensi di tali principi sono ulteriormente descritte nel paragrafo 
“Responsabilità del revisore per la revisione contabile del bilancio consolidato” della presente 
relazione. Sono indipendente rispetto alla GTS Holding S.r.l. in conformità alle norme e ai principi 
in materia di etica e di indipendenza applicabili nell’ordinamento italiano alla revisione contabile 
del bilancio. Ritengo di aver acquisito elementi probativi sufficienti e appropriati su cui basare il 
mio giudizio. 

Responsabilità degli Amministratori e del Sindaco Unico per il bilancio consolidato  

Gli Amministratori sono responsabili per la redazione del bilancio consolidato che fornisca una 
rappresentazione veritiera e corretta in conformità alle norme italiane che ne disciplinano i criteri 
di redazione e, nei termini previsti dalla legge, per quella parte del controllo interno dagli stessi 
ritenuta necessaria per consentire la redazione di un bilancio che non contenga errori significativi 
dovuti a frodi o a comportamenti o eventi non intenzionali. 

Gli Amministratori sono responsabili per la valutazione della capacità del Gruppo di continuare a 
operare come un’entità in funzionamento e, nella redazione del bilancio consolidato, per 
l’appropriatezza dell’utilizzo del presupposto della continuità aziendale, nonché per una adeguata 
informativa in materia. Gli Amministratori utilizzano il presupposto della continuità aziendale 
nella redazione del bilancio consolidato a meno che abbiano valutato che sussistono le condizioni 
per la liquidazione della capogruppo GTS Holding S.r.l. o per l’interruzione dell’attività o non 
abbiano alternative realistiche a tali scelte. 
Il Sindaco unico ha la responsabilità della vigilanza, nei termini previsti dalla legge, sul processo 
di predisposizione dell’informativa finanziaria del Gruppo. 

Prof.	Dott.	Andrea	Venturelli	
Associato	di	Economia	Aziendale	nell’Università	del	Salento	

Revisore	legale	dei	conti	
Dottore	commercialista	

Studio:	Corso	Cavour,	51	–	70121	BARI	–	Tel.	080.524.35.12	–	Fax	080.5214809	
C.F.	VNT	NDR	76S16	A662V	–	P.IVA	06107140722	–	email:	and.venturelli@gmail.com	

 

Relazione del revisore indipendente ai sensi dell’art. 14 del D.Lgs. 27 gennaio 
2010, n. 39 

Ai soci della GTS Holding S.r.l. 

Relazione sulla revisione contabile del bilancio consolidato  

Giudizio 

Ho svolto la revisione contabile del bilancio consolidato del Gruppo GTS (nel seguito anche il 
“Gruppo”), costituito dallo stato patrimoniale al 31 dicembre 2017, dal conto economico e dal 
rendiconto finanziario per l’esercizio chiuso a tale data e dalla nota integrativa. 
A mio giudizio, il bilancio consolidato fornisce una rappresentazione veritiera e corretta della 
situazione patrimoniale e finanziaria del Gruppo al 31 dicembre 2017, del risultato economico e 
dei flussi di cassa per l’esercizio chiuso a tale data in conformità alle norme italiane che ne 
disciplinano i criteri di redazione. 

Elementi alla base del giudizio 

Ho svolto la revisione contabile in conformità ai principi di revisione internazionali (ISA Italia). 
Le mie responsabilità ai sensi di tali principi sono ulteriormente descritte nel paragrafo 
“Responsabilità del revisore per la revisione contabile del bilancio consolidato” della presente 
relazione. Sono indipendente rispetto alla GTS Holding S.r.l. in conformità alle norme e ai principi 
in materia di etica e di indipendenza applicabili nell’ordinamento italiano alla revisione contabile 
del bilancio. Ritengo di aver acquisito elementi probativi sufficienti e appropriati su cui basare il 
mio giudizio. 

Responsabilità degli Amministratori e del Sindaco Unico per il bilancio consolidato  

Gli Amministratori sono responsabili per la redazione del bilancio consolidato che fornisca una 
rappresentazione veritiera e corretta in conformità alle norme italiane che ne disciplinano i criteri 
di redazione e, nei termini previsti dalla legge, per quella parte del controllo interno dagli stessi 
ritenuta necessaria per consentire la redazione di un bilancio che non contenga errori significativi 
dovuti a frodi o a comportamenti o eventi non intenzionali. 

Gli Amministratori sono responsabili per la valutazione della capacità del Gruppo di continuare a 
operare come un’entità in funzionamento e, nella redazione del bilancio consolidato, per 
l’appropriatezza dell’utilizzo del presupposto della continuità aziendale, nonché per una adeguata 
informativa in materia. Gli Amministratori utilizzano il presupposto della continuità aziendale 
nella redazione del bilancio consolidato a meno che abbiano valutato che sussistono le condizioni 
per la liquidazione della capogruppo GTS Holding S.r.l. o per l’interruzione dell’attività o non 
abbiano alternative realistiche a tali scelte. 
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My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia) will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of the audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia), I exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:
• Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error; design and perform audit procedures in response to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of non 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of 
internal control;
• Obtain and understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of  expressing an opi-
nion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control; 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting principles used and the reasonableness of ac-
counting estimates and related disclosures made management;
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I con-
clude that a material uncertainty exists, I’m required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s re-
port. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern;
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions in a man-
ner that achieves fair presentation;
• Obtained sufficent appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 
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Il Sindaco unico ha la responsabilità della vigilanza, nei termini previsti dalla legge, sul processo 
di predisposizione dell’informativa finanziaria del Gruppo. 

Prof.	Dott.	Andrea	Venturelli	
Associato	di	Economia	Aziendale	nell’Università	del	Salento	
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Dottore	commercialista	
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Relazione del revisore indipendente ai sensi dell’art. 14 del D.Lgs. 27 gennaio 
2010, n. 39 

Ai soci della GTS Holding S.r.l. 

Relazione sulla revisione contabile del bilancio consolidato  

Giudizio 

Ho svolto la revisione contabile del bilancio consolidato del Gruppo GTS (nel seguito anche il 
“Gruppo”), costituito dallo stato patrimoniale al 31 dicembre 2017, dal conto economico e dal 
rendiconto finanziario per l’esercizio chiuso a tale data e dalla nota integrativa. 
A mio giudizio, il bilancio consolidato fornisce una rappresentazione veritiera e corretta della 
situazione patrimoniale e finanziaria del Gruppo al 31 dicembre 2017, del risultato economico e 
dei flussi di cassa per l’esercizio chiuso a tale data in conformità alle norme italiane che ne 
disciplinano i criteri di redazione. 

Elementi alla base del giudizio 

Ho svolto la revisione contabile in conformità ai principi di revisione internazionali (ISA Italia). 
Le mie responsabilità ai sensi di tali principi sono ulteriormente descritte nel paragrafo 
“Responsabilità del revisore per la revisione contabile del bilancio consolidato” della presente 
relazione. Sono indipendente rispetto alla GTS Holding S.r.l. in conformità alle norme e ai principi 
in materia di etica e di indipendenza applicabili nell’ordinamento italiano alla revisione contabile 
del bilancio. Ritengo di aver acquisito elementi probativi sufficienti e appropriati su cui basare il 
mio giudizio. 

Responsabilità degli Amministratori e del Sindaco Unico per il bilancio consolidato  

Gli Amministratori sono responsabili per la redazione del bilancio consolidato che fornisca una 
rappresentazione veritiera e corretta in conformità alle norme italiane che ne disciplinano i criteri 
di redazione e, nei termini previsti dalla legge, per quella parte del controllo interno dagli stessi 
ritenuta necessaria per consentire la redazione di un bilancio che non contenga errori significativi 
dovuti a frodi o a comportamenti o eventi non intenzionali. 

Gli Amministratori sono responsabili per la valutazione della capacità del Gruppo di continuare a 
operare come un’entità in funzionamento e, nella redazione del bilancio consolidato, per 
l’appropriatezza dell’utilizzo del presupposto della continuità aziendale, nonché per una adeguata 
informativa in materia. Gli Amministratori utilizzano il presupposto della continuità aziendale 
nella redazione del bilancio consolidato a meno che abbiano valutato che sussistono le condizioni 
per la liquidazione della capogruppo GTS Holding S.r.l. o per l’interruzione dell’attività o non 
abbiano alternative realistiche a tali scelte. 
Il Sindaco unico ha la responsabilità della vigilanza, nei termini previsti dalla legge, sul processo 
di predisposizione dell’informativa finanziaria del Gruppo. 

entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. I’m responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. I 
remain solely responsible for my audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
I communicate with those charged with governance, identified at the appropriate level as required 
by the ISA Italia, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant au-
dit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Opinion pursuant to article 14, paragraph 2, letter e), of Legislative Decree n. 39/10
The directors of GTS Holding Group are responsible for the preparation of the report on operations 
of Group as at 12/31/2017, including its consistency with the financial statements and the complian-
ce with the applicable laws and regulations.
I have performed the procedures required under audit standard (SA Italia) n. 720B in order to 
express an opinion on the consistency of the report on operations, with the consolidated financial 
statements of GTS Holding Group as at 12/31/2017 and on its compliance with the applicable laws 
and regulations, and in order to assess whether its contain material misstatements.
In my opinion, the report on operations is consistent with the consolidated financial statements of 
GTS Holding Group as at 12/31/2017 and is compliant with applicable laws and regulations.
With reference to the assessment pursuant to article 14, paragraph. 2, letter e), of Legislative De-
cree n. 39/10 based on our knowledge and understanding of the entity and its environment obtained 
through our audit, I have nothing to report.

Bari, 5 september 2018 

The independent auditor
Prof. Dott. Andrea Venturelli
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BARI
Headquarter
Via Sasha Muciaccia 15
70132 Bari – Italy
Tel. +39 080 5820411 
Fax +39 080 5820499

LONDON (UK) 
GTS Logistics UK Ltd 
Unit G10, The Bloc
Springfield Way, Anlaby
Hull HU10 6RJ 
Tel. +44 (1) 482427 060

ROTTERDAM (NL) 
G.T.S. Nederland B.V. 
Vesteland, 38J 
3011 BM Rotterdam 
Tel. +31 (0) 10 7371 685 
or ext. 686

www.gtslogistic.com
www.gtsrail.com
www.rail-services.it

info@gtslogistic.com



www.gtslogistic.com
www.gtsrail.com
www.rail-services.it

info@gtslogistic.com



gtslogistic.com


